ASTROLOGY FOR BEGINNERS PART-4

ASTROLOGY FOR BEGINNERS VOLUME -IV-

(CONTENTS)

1.	CORRECT TIME OF BIRTH	401
2.	HOW TO ERECT HOROSCOPE ON THE K.P. SYSTEM ASTROLOGY	410
3.	AYANAMSA	444
4.	DOMESTIC ENVIRONMENT	465
5.	KENDRA ADHIPATHYAM	474
6.	VIPARITHA RAJA YOGA	485
7.	ASHTAKA VARGA	490
8.	K.P. AND TWIN BIRTHS	513
9.	HOROSCOPE OF TWIN A	517
10.	HOROSCOPE OF TWIN B	526
11.	HOROSCOPE OF TWIN A (K.P)	535
12.	HOROSCOPE OF TWIN B (K.P)	539
13.	HOROSCOPE OF TWIN X	543
14.	HOROSCOPE OF TWIN Y	552
15.	HOROSCOPE OF TWIN X (K.P)	561
16.	HOROSCOPE OF TWIN Y (K.P)	566

CORRECT TIME OF BIRTH

BY (KRISHNAMURTHI PADHDHATI)

It is a Monday, Navarathri festival is on. Ladies are pouring in to receive the blessings. Among them came one gentleman, straight to me and he showed the letter written by me to him.

He is the person to whom an astrologer of the south wrote, "The Dasa balance remains the same", though the time of birth is changed by 18 minutes.

Immediately I took the time of his entry and I started working.

"Sir, may I request you to kindly verify with the past events in my life".

Before nothing the past events let me first proceed by horary and confirm the exact position of your lagna.

"Very good Sir"

Alright give me a number within 249".

"Let it be 49 only, Sir".

II 24-53 Ven 18-23 Rah 4-42	III 25-23	IV 22-02	15-02
Lagna 14-02 Sun 9-25 Mer 5-27			VI 11-02 Ju. 22-57
Mar 4-48			Moon
XII 11-02			9-14-46
Sat 6-58-		1	VII 14-02
XI 15-02	X 22-02	IX 25-53	Kethu 4-42 VIII 24-53

[&]quot;By 49, it is meant Mercury sign, Rahu star and Saturn sub" rises.

According to my calculation I found out that your lagna should be Saturn sign, Rahu star and Mercury sub; so all the

three planets signifying the ascendent repeat themselves. Therefore, you need not entertain any doubt God guides us mysteriously. You could have given any other number except that which will guide an honest astrologer properly and correctly; it is the divine force which works. It is not in our hands; you yourself say how it coincides and it guides. Alright, now, please give the past events and I shall find out in each Dasa Bhukti and Anthra, the events happened and how they are the significators, for such events. Whenever we want to confirm by verifying the past events, it is most unscientific if an event is said to have happened in a Dasa or in a Bhukti because the Dasa runs for years and the Bhukti is also run for years. When we verify the birth time which can vary by 10 or 15 minutes it is absolutely necessary to work out up to Anthra and even Shookshma and ascertain whether the Anthra lord and the Shookshma lord are the significators for such an event. If anyone were to say that your father died during Shukra Dasa Rahu Bhukti then this period runs for three years so even if you are born one hour before or after especially when Kethu Dasa was operating at the time of the birth the event will fall in Rahu Bhukti only. Only when the Anthra is taken then alone the Dasa balance at the time of the birth can be correctly worked out. Traditional astrologers stopping with Bhukti and advancing the arguments regretted. Let me hear one event after another and find out how the time I have arrived at and the Dasa balance worked out by using the correct Krishnamurti Ayanamsa agrees with the events taking the significators

and their conjoined periods. The horoscope is worked out for the time I found out.

Your horoscope is as follows:-

Kethu class balance at the time of birth was 2 years 1 month and 22 days.

VERIFICATION:

Mother's end: It was in the 4th week February 1933. So the period running then was Kethu Dasa Saturn Bhukti Rahu Anthra.

Always for the end of life of anybody, take the house which represents that relative and find the significators of the Bhahaka and Marakasthana. Fourth house indicates mother. It falls in Taurus. The fourth cusp falls in the constellation of Moon and sub of Venus who is situated in the Marakasthanadipathi Mercury constellation. In the eighth Bhava to the fourth, Saturn is deposited in the constellation of Sun who is in the Bhadhakasthana the 9th to the fourth. Hence Saturn is evil. Rahu is deposited in Saturn star and Saturn sub. Rahu in that constellation is very evil as Saturn is in Bhadhakasthana's occupant star and it is the Bhadhasthana adipathi. Kethu is in the constellation of Sun who is occupying the Bhadhakasthana. Hence these three are strong significators to cause the end to your mother.

It also includes that she could bring forth a younger brother to you. The third cusp falls in Mercury sub who is in 12th in the constellation of the Planet in 12.

Father's end: It was in December 4th week 1941 i.e. in Venus Dasa Rahu Bhukti Guru Anthra, 9th house represents father, 9th cusp falls in Jupiter star and Kethu sub in the sign Libra owned by Venus. No planet is in the 9th house. It is a movable sign. The 11th therefrom, is the Bhadhakasthana, it is between 14002' Leo to 24°53' Virgo. Kethu is deposited there. As the sub of the 9th cusp has fallen in the sub, significators as the Bhadhakasthana the father is also short lived.

The Maraka houses are 2 and 7, No planet is deposited there. Mars is the owner. Mercury and Mars are in Mars star. Venus, lord or the 9th house is in Mercury sub and also in Mercury star. Whenever, lord of the lagna and lord of a Bhava is in the sub of a significator of Maraka, then the lord of the lagna gives the death. So Venus, though lord of lagna, indicating father gave the death in its dasa.

A node gives first the result of the planet with which it is conjoined. Rahu is along with Venus in Pisces. So Rahu is very strong and it has given the death in its sub period. Jupiter is in Mercury star and sub of Moon who is aspected by Mars and who is to give the results of Kethu in Bhadhakasthana. Therefore, Jupiter in the Anthra gave this unfortunate and inevitable event to the 9th house, i.e., father.

Service Entry: 8th July, 1954. Sun Dasa Sun Bhukti Mercury Anthra.

Houses 2, 6 and 10 denote the service. House 2 is unoccupied. It is owned by Jupiter. Rahu is deposited in the Jupiter's sign. Sun alone is in the constellation of Rahu, and sub of Jupiter who is lord of 2 and 11. Therefore, Sun is very favourable. Moon in 6 has no Planet in its star. 6th house is also occupied by Jupiter. It is represented by Rahu and Sun is strong. 10th house is owned by Mars Mercury as well as Mars are in the constellation of Mars.

Jupiter in exaltation gave it on a Thursday, when Sun was in Mercury sign Jupiter star, Moon was in Mercury sign. Jupiter was in Rahu Mercury sign and Rahu star and Mercury in Mercury sign star.

Larriage:- He was married on 6.5.1938.

At the time Sun Dasa Mercury Bhukti Venus Anthra was operating. Sun is in the constellation of Rahu and sub of Jupiter. Rahu is the agent of Jupiter lord of 2 and 11 which houses are to be judged for marriage as, the second house denotes increase in the number of the members of the family by the marriage, 11 indicates pleasure and permanent tie of friendship. Further Sun, lord of 7 indicating marriage. Mercury is conjoined with Sun and is in the sub of Venus. Venus is aspected by lord 2 and 11 and also by Saturn in the 11th house. Mercury in Venus sub is fruitful for marriage.

Transit: Sun was in Venus Star Jupiter sub. Moon was in Jupiter sign Kethu star. Mercury in Jupiter sign Mercury star Jupiter sub. Jupiter in Venus sign, Mars star Mercury sub. Saturn in the star of Kethu in Jupiter's sign. Each planet is transiting in the star and sub belonging to the significators.

the second section of the second seco

TO COLUMN THE PROPERTY OF THE PARTY OF THE P

How to erect Horoscope on the K.P. System Astrology

建筑物

Books required are:-

- (1) "KRISHMAN'S TABLES OF HOUSES" Book, which gives the cusp position to the minute level. Other Bhava Books are condensed one, giving the position to Minute only and error in arriving at correct sub and sub-sub is not ruled out.
- (2) Ephemeries containing planetary position published by Hariman book sellers. Other ephemeries have adopted different Ayanamsa value and as such correct planetary position is not available in other ephemeries.
- (3) "Astrological Tables for all" by R.Eswara Manu, to find out the Star Lord, Sub Lord & Sub Sub lord for cusp and planets and to work out Desa, Anthra etc.

I have taken 5 examples of horoscope - the same birth time but at different cities and stage by stage from the beginning, illustrated, the calculations and preparation and finally the chart with cuspal and planetary positions as well as the signification of various houses, by each and every planet, in a simple language, so that each and every one could very easily grasp and become competent in preparation of the charts. It is necessary to mention that KSK/KP Ayanamsa only should invariably be followed in preparing the Bhava Chart. No attempt should be made to mix up any other Ayanamsa, with these calculations, if done, the horoscope will not be strictly in K.P. System. For planetary position, no Ayanamsa should be deducted as the position is in NIRAYANA.

FIRST STAGE - FIND OUT THE SIDEREAL TIME

IRTH TO PREPARE BHAVA CHART

OF THE B

STAGE BY STAGE AS FOLLOWS: -- FOLLOW

Record the Birth Time of details of the person whose chart is to be prepared.

1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
NAME	UCHISHTA	SIVAI	VISHNU	SARASWATH	LAKSHMI
	GANÁPATHY				
Date of Birth	21-10-48	21-10-48	21-10-48	21-10-48	21-10-48
Time	2-48AM (IST)	2-48AM (IST)	2-48AM (IST)	2-48AM (IST)	2-48AM (IST)
Place of birth	Madras	Bombay	Calcutta	Delhi	Hyderabad
Note down these details. N.B. For Avanamsa - follow the froures given by late Gurinii, only.	w the foures aiven by	late Gurinii. only.			
Latitude	13° 4' North	18° - 55' North	22° - 34' North	28° - 38° North	17° - 20' North
Longitude	80° 17' East	72" - 54' East	88° - 24' East	77° - 12° East	78° - 30' East
KSK/ KP AYANAMSA	23° - 2'	23, -2	23° - 2'	23° - 2	23°-2
Find out the difference of long, between 82° 30' and the birth place and if the difference is add to the birth time, calculating at 4 mts per degree.	long, between 82° 30 ulating at 4 mts per de	and the birth place and gree.		s deduct it from birth tir	less deduct it from birth time IST and if it is more,
Indian Date Line	82° - 30'	82° - 30'	82° - 30'	82° - 30'	82° - 30'
	(—) 80-17	72 - 54	88 - 24	77 - 12	78 - 30
	(-)2-13×4	(-) 9 - 36 x 4	(+) 5 - 54 x 4	(-) 5 - 18 x 4	(-) 4-0×4
	(—) 0 - 8 -52 H - M - Sec	(—) 0 - 38 - 24 H - M - Sec	(+) 0 - 23 - 36 H - M - Sec	(—) 0 - 21 - 12 H - M - Sec	(—) 0 - 16 - 0 H - M - Sec

21 - 02 - 00

48

23

+0-3-10

5-30-00

26 - 32 - 00

(-) 0 - 16 - 00

For convenience of calculation - make it adding 24 hrs - From this birth time, deduct or add the diff. in langitude birth, as calculated in previous

coloumn.

	26-48-00	(-)0.21.12
	26-48-00	(+) 0 - 23 - 36
	26-48-00	(-)0-38-24
02-48-00 (or)	26-48-00	(-)0.8.52

For this balance time - Add correction at 10 sec per Flour or 1 sec per 6mts and add this to the time

a 21 - CE - 08	20 - 38 - 36	21 - 41 - 36	
b +0-5-32	+0-3-27	+0-3-27 +0-3-37	+0-3-

Add that date ST, given in the book at 5-30 Hrs. Now you will have 3 set of figures a, b, c.

This is the nett sidereal Time of Birth for which Bhava chart is to be prepared

IInd Stage - Preparation of Bhava Chart

In the Bhava Book, the houses Location/ Points are given, for Lat 0° to 60°. It is given for every 4 mts interval of sidereal Time, in the mts and seconds. For instance, the Madras Birth ST is 4 - 36 - 6. This means that you have to extract Book ST figures for Hrs 4 - 40 and 4 - 36 and work out the Proportionate movement for 6 seconds and add with figures for 4 - 36 and now you will get it for 4 - 36 - 6. Similarly, First coloumn. The Birth time ST as amived at as above, will not be in tune with these 4 mts sets. The birth ST will be the intermediate for Bombary Birth the ST is 4 - 6 - 29. You have to calculate the movement for 2 mts - 29 seconds, based on the 4 mts movement of 4 - 4 and 4 - 8 and add this with 4 - 4 and the total figures thus arrived at would be for 4 - 6 - 29 required by us.

KRISHMAN'S TABLES OF HOUSES

MAS 13° -4 ST 4 - 36 - 6 ST H M 4-40 160° 4-36 (a) 15	4 - 36 - 6 (1) 160° - 16' - 32" (a) 159 - 17 - 56	(2) 190° - 12′ - 11″ 189 - 11 - 7	(3) 221° - 13' - 52" 220 - 14 - 26	(10) 71° - 32′ - 07″ 70 - 35 - 59	(11) 100° - 55' - 07" 100 - 00 - 5	MADRAS BIRTH (12) "" 130° - 21' - 31" 129 - 24 - 46
For 6 or 1	0 - 58 - 36 or 3516" (b) 0 - 1 - 28	1 - 1 - 4 3164" 0 - 1 - 19	0 - 59 - 26 3566" 0 - 1 - 29	0 - 56 - 08 3368" 0 - 1 - 24	0 - 55 - 2 3302" 0 - 1 - 23	0 - 56 - 45 3405" 0 - 1 - 25
Total (8+b) TO (-) KP Ayanamsa	159 - 19 - 24 23 - 2 - 0	189 - 12 - 26 23 - 2 - 0	220 - 15 - 55 23 - 2 - 0	70 - 37 - 23 23 - 2 - 0	100 - 01 - 28° 23 - 2 - 0	129 - 26 - 11
BIRTH CUSPS	136 - 17 - 24	166 - 10 - 26	197 - 13 - 55	47 - 35 - 23	76 - 59 - 28	106 - 24 - 11
Add 180°, for the	Leo (1) Virgo (2) 16° - 17' - 24" 16° - 10' - 26" Add 180°, for the opposite Houses, these will be as follows.	Virgo (2) 16° - 10' - 26" se will be as follows.	Libra (3) 17° - 13' - 55"	Tau (10) 17° - 35' - 23"	Gem (11) 16 - 59' - 28"	CANCER (12) 16° - 24' - 11"

Here the Diff. in Lat. is 4'. Therefore 13° Lat. figures adopted.
 Don't forget to deduct Ayanamsa.

16° - 24' - 11"

Capri (6)

Sagit. (5) 16° - 59' - 28"

Scor. (4) 17° - 35' - 23"

17 - 13' - 55"

16° - 10' - 26"

16° - 17' - 24"

Aqu. (7)

Pisc. (8)

Aries (9)

MADRAS BIRTH

CUSP POSITION

(X)-

Cusp			RASI	STAR	SUB	Sub - Sub
			Lord	Lord	Lord	Lord
		D M S		section That		
1.	Leo	16—17—24	Sun	Ven	Moon	Mocn
2.	Virgo	16-10-26	Mer	Moon	Sat	Mer
3.	Lib	17—13—55	Ven	Rahu	Ven	Mer
4.	Scor	17—35—23	Mars	Mer	Mer	Moon
5.	Sagit	16—59—28	Jup	Ven	Moon	Mer
6.	Capri	16-24-11	Sat	Moon	Sat	Kethu
7.	Aqu.	16—17—24	Sat	Rahu	Ven	Rahu
8.	Pisc.	16—10—26	Jup	Sat	Jup	Moon
9.	Aries	17—13—55	Mars	Ven	Moon	Ven
10.	Tau	17—35—23	Ven	Moon	Sat	Jup
11.	Gem	1 6— 5 9— 28	Mer	Rahu	Ven	Sat
12.	Cancer	16—24—11	Moon	Sat	Jup	Rahu

For 19°-26'-25" VIII 46'-10'-26"	Rahu 12-14-20 IX 17° - 13'-55"	Moon 6-30-16 X 17° - 35'-23"	Uranus 7-27-00 XI 16° - 59'-28"
WW 16°~ 17'-24"	Sri	T	XII 16°-24'-11"
VI 16° - 24'-11"	Lat 13° 4' N Long 80° - 17' E KSK/KP Ayanan Sun Desai Y Balance 1-	nsa 23° - 2'	Sat 10-21-26 I 16° - 17'-24" Ven 23-30-07
V 16° - 59'-28" Jup 2-9-46	IV 17° - 35'-23" Mars 9-36-10	III 17° - 13'-55" Keth 12-14-20 Sun 4-21-15 Mer(R) 2-25-20	II 16° - 10'-26" Nept 20-14-46

TABLE OF SIGNIFICATOR

Cusp	Planet in the star of the occupant of the cusp	Occupant of the cusp	Planet in the star of owner of cusp	Owner of the cusp
1.	Ven	Ven	Moon	Sun Mer
2.	Moon, J, Sat, Rah	Mer, Sun, K	Ven	Ven
3.	Sun, Mer	Mars		Mars
4.		Jup	Sun, Mer	Jup
5.	<u> </u>			Sat
6.	22		Mars	Sat
7.			Mars	
8.	Kethu	Rahu		Jup
9.		Moon	Sun, Mer	Mars
10.			Ven	Ven
11.		Same of the same o		Mer
12.	Mars	Sat		Moon

HOUSES SIGNIFIED (MADRAS)

As Cuspel point As Cuspel point	Cuspal point				In Star		dus ni		In Sub Sub	.23
			Owns	Occu	that Lord Owns	80 .	that Lord	90	that Lord Occ Owns	80
		SUN	-	8	Mars 4/9	က	3 Ven 3/10	-	1 Sat 6/7	5
1,5,9	1,4,8,—	Moon	12	6	Sun 1	8	2 Mer 2/11	8	2 Jup 5/8	1 4
	l	Mars	6,4	က	Sat 6/7	12	12 Ven 3/10	•	1 Sat 6/7	12
•	2,3,5	Mer(R)	2,11	8	Mars 4/9	ဇ	3 Kethu	2	2 Jup 5/8	4
8, 12	10, 1	dy	5,8	4	Kethu	8	2 Ven 3/10	•	1 Jup 5/8	4
3, 7, 11	- 6	Ven	3,10	-	Ven 3,10	-	Sat 6/7	5	12 Rahu —	ω
2,6,10	Į. ∓.	Sat	6,7	12	Kethu	8	2 Sat 6/7	4	12 Ven 3/10	-
l	7,12,—	Rahu	l	80	Kethu	8	Mer 2/11	8	2 Moon 12	6
	9	Kethu		~	Rahu	80	Sat 6/7	42	12 Rahu	∞
	*)				Fortuna Point: Lag + Moon	-ag	136-17-24 36-30-16	i to	To treat to	
	Ψ)				- Sun		172-47-40 (or) 184-21-15	_	532-47-40	
					00, 10				348-26-25 Pisces 18:26-25	55

Cancer (12) 10° - 52' · 54"

Gem (11) 11° - 4' - 24"

Tau (10) 10° - 36' - 10"

Libra (3) 9° - 20' - 20"

Leo (1) · 10° - 14′ - 45″ Capri (6) 10° - 52' - 54"

Sagitt. (5)

Scor. (4) 10° - 36' - 10"

Opposite Houses
Aries (9)
9° - 20' - 20"

2180

Pisc. (8) 8° - 34' - 23"

Aqu. (7) 10° - 14' - 45"

18° - 55' ST 4 - 6 - 29	8 - 29				8	BOMBAY BIRTI
ST H IS	ε	(2)	ව	(10)	(E)	(12)
19"=4-8	153° - 37' - 53"	181° - 58' - 55"	212 - 45' - 2"	63° - 59' - 49"	94" - 27" - 13"	124° - 15' - 46"
4 - 4	152° - 42 - 9	180 - 59 - 28	211 - 45 - 10	63 - 2 - 43	93 - 35 - 20	123 - 20 - 45
For 4 mts	0 - 55 - 44	0 - 59 - 27	0 - 59 - 52	90 - 22 - 06	0 - 54 - 53	0 - 55 - 01
	3344"	3567"	3592"	3426"	3293"	3301"
For 149	2076" or	2215	2230	2127	2044	2049
240	0 - 34 - 36	0 - 36 - 55	0 - 37 - 10	0 - 35 - 27	9.47 7.00 9.47 9.47 9.47 9.47 9.47 9.47 9.47 9.47	6-36-0
	153 - 16 - 45	181 - 36 - 23	212 - 22 - 20	63 - 38 - 10	94 - 06 - 24	123 - 54 - 54
(—) KP Ayana- msa	23 - 2 - 00	23-2-00	23 - 2 - 00	23 - 2 - 00	23 - 5 · 00	23.2.8
				V AM	E S	
Birth Cusps	130 - 14 - 45	158 - 34 - 23	189 - 20 - 20	40 - 36 - 10	71 - 04 - 24	100 - 52 - 54

ures adopted.		
(1) Here the ckiff. in Lat. is less 5'. T	(9) Don't formet to dock of Avanage	לבן ביטוו בוטוקפר ול שפעוניו האמומוווס

BOMBAY BIRTH

CUSP POSITION

Сцяр		*	RASI	STAR	SUB	Sub - Sub Lord
•		D M S			949	
1.	Leo	10—14—45	Sun	Kethu	Sat	Ven
2.	Virgo	8—34—23	Mer	Sun	Ven	Mars
3.	Lib	9-20-20	Ven	Rahu	Jup	Mer
4.	Scorp	10—36—10	Mars	Sat	Sun	Jup
5.	Sagit	11— 4—24	Jup	Kethu	Sat	Rahu
6.	Capri	10—52 —5 4	Sat	Moon	Moon	Ven
7.	Aqu.	10—14—45	Sat	Rahu	Jup	Rahu
8.	Pisc.	8-34-23	Jup	Sat	Ven	Sun
9.	Aries	9—20—20	Mars	Kethu	Sat	Sat
10.	Tau	10-36-10	Ven	Moon	Moon	Set
11,	Gem 1	1— 4—24	Mer	Rahu	Sat	Mer
12.	Cancer	10-52-54	Moon	Sat	Sun	Kethu
				<u> </u>		

For 12°-23'-46" VIII 8° - 34'-23"	IX 9° - 20'-20" Rahu 12-14-20	Moon 6-30-16 X 10° - 36'-10"	Uranus 7-27-00 XI 11° - 4'-24"
VII 10° - 14'-45"	Sri	•	XII 10°-52'-54"
VI 10° - 52'-54"		nsa 23° - 2' M D -626	I 10° - 14'-45" Sat 10-21-26 Ven 23-30-07
V 11° - 4'-24" Jup 2-9-46	IV 10° - 36'-10" Mars 9-36-10	K 12-14-20 III 9° - 20'-20" Sun 4-21-15 Mer(R) 2-25-20	II 8° - 34'-23" Nept 20-14-46

PARASTO

TABLE OF SIGNIFICATOR

Cusp	Planet in the star of the occupant of the cusp	Occupant of the cusp	Planet in the star of owner of cusp	Owner of the cusp
1.	Mars, Ven	Sat, Ven	Moon	Sun
2.	Moon	Mer, Sun		Mer
3.	J, Sat, R, Sun, Mer	Mars, K	Ven	Ven
4.		Jup	Sun, Mer	Mars
5.				Jup
6.		-	Mars	Sat
7.			Mars	Sat
8.				Jup
9.	Kethu	Ra, Moon	Sun, Mer	Mars
10.		-	Ven	Ven
11.	g=	.2		Mer
12.				Мооп

(BOMBAY)
SIGNIFIED
HOUSES !

						(4)										
	100			၁၀		-	4	-	4	4	6	-	6	6		P P
80.5 00	179 - 31 - 43	In Sub Sub	that Lord	Occ Owns		1 Sat 6/7	2 Jup 5/8	Sat 6/7	Jup 5/8	Jup 5/8	Rahu —	Ven 3/10	2 Moon 12	Rahu		528-45-01 184-21-15 342-23-46 Pisces 12-23-46
0	Q:			900	7	-	8	-	6	-	-	-	8	-		€ .
52 5-00		dus ni	that Lord	Occ Owns	9.00	3 Ven 3/10	2 Mer 2/11	Ven 3/10	Kethu	3 Ven 3/10	1 Sat 6/7	Sat 6/7	3 Mer 2/11	9 Sat 6/7	36-30-16	166-45-01 (or) 184-21-15
AX	50			900		က	7	-	ď	က	•	က	ဇ	0	Lag	
HOUSES SIGNIFIED (BOMBAY)	6.83	in Star	that Lord	Owns		Mars 4/9	Sun 1	Sat 6/7	Mars 4/9	Kethu	Ven 3,10	Kethu	Kethu	Rahu	Fortuna Point: + Moon	- Sur
GNIFI				Occu	pies	8	6	၈	8	4	-	-	6	6		
ES SI				OWINS		-	12	4,9	2,11	5,8	3,10	6,7	Ì	Ì		II.
HOUS			Planet			SUN	Moon	Mars	Mer(R)	daç	Ven	Sat	Rahu	Kethu		100 F
		As Cuenal point	Sub Sub Lord			8		-2	3,11	4	1.6	9, 10	5,7	12		
Why reported	1000	As Cuenal point As Cuenal point	Sub lord	780		4,12	6, 10			3,7	2,8	1,5,9,11				

STROLOGY FOR BEGINNERS

Hyd 17 - 20' ST 4 - 28 - 36	-28-36				HYDER	HYDERABAD BIRTH
ST H M	Ξ	8	3	(10)	Ξ	(12)
18 4 - 32	159 - 4' - 43"	187 - 57' - 49"	218 - 47 - 3"	69" - 39' - 44"	99° - 47' - 31"	128 - 34' - 7"
4 - 28	158 - 8 - 12	186 - 58 - 10	217 - 47 - 53	68 - 43 - 23	88 - 52 - 39	128 - 38 - 26
	0 - 56 - 31	0 - 59 - 39	0 - 59 - 10	0 - 56 - 21	0 - 54 - 52	0 - 55 - 41
	3391"	3579"	3550"	3381"	3282"	3341"
38	509" or	537	533	203	494	501
240 20	0.8.29	0-8-57	0 - 8 - 53	0-8-27	0 - 8 - 14	0-8-21
	158 - 16 - 41	187 - 07 - 07	217 - 56 - 46	68 - 51 - 50	89 - 00 - 53	128 - 46 - 47
17 4 - 32	158 - 55 - 43	188 - 0 - 15	218 - 52 - 41	69 - 39 - 44	99 - 38 - 51	129 - 20 - 48
4 - 28	157 - 58 - 49	187 - 0 - 18	217 - 53 - 25	68 - 43 - 23	98 - 43 - 58	128 - 24 - 57
	0 - 56 - 54	0 - 59 - 57	0 - 59 - 16	0 - 56 - 21	0 - 54 - 53	0 - 55 - 51
	3414"	3597"	3556"	3381"	3293"	3351"
98	512" or	540	533	204	484	503
240 20	0 - 8 - 32	0-8-0	0 - 8 - 53	0-8-27	0 - 8 - 14	0 - 8 - 23
	158 - 07 - 21	187 - 9 - 18	218 - 02 - 18	68 - 51 - 50	88 - 52 - 12	128 - 33 - 20
Diff. bet. 17° &	+0-08-50	(-) 0-2-11	(-) 0 - 02 - 32		(+) 0 - 08 - 41	+0-13-27
18" = 60' For 20' Add with	(+) 0 - 03 - 07	(-) 0 - 0 - 44	(—) 0 - 01 - 51		(+) 0 - 05 - 54	(+) 0 - 4 - 29
Deduct KP	158 - 10 - 28	187 - 8 - 34	218 - 00 - 27	68 - 51 - 50	96-55-06	128 - 37 - 49
Ayanamsa	23 - 2 - 00	23 - 2 - 00	23 - 2 - 00	23 - 2 - 00	23 - 2 - 00	23.2.00

	135 - 8 - 28	164 - 6 - 34	194 - 58 - 27	45 - 49 - 50	75 - 53 - 06	105 - 35 - 49
	Leo (1) 15° - 8' - 28"	Virgo (2) 14° - 6' - 34"	Libra (3) 14° - 58′ - 27″	Tau (10) 15° - 49' - 50"	Gem (11) 15° - 53' - 06"	Cancer (12) 15° - 35' - 49"
-	Aqu. (7) 15° - 8' - 28"	Pisc. (8)	Opposite Houses Aries (9) 14° - 58' - 27"	Scor. (4) 15° - 49' - 50"	Sagitt. (5) 15° - 53′ - 06″	Capri (6) 15° - 35' - 49"

- 20'. But the book gives figures for Lat 17° & 18° etc. Therefore, first calculate the figures for 17° and then 18°. From the difference of this 1° or 60', Calculate the proportion for 20' and add with 17° then you will get the figures for Lat 17 - 20'. Dont forget to deduct Ayanamsa. In this case, the figures required are for 17

HYDERABAD BIRTH

CUSP POSITION

Cusp		8 50	RASI	STAR	SUB	Sub - Sub
		ŏ.	Lord	Lord	Lord	Lord
		D M S	5			
1.	Leo	15— 8—28	Sun	Ven	Ven	Mer
2.	Virgo	14— 6—34	Mer	Moon	Jup	Jup
3.	Libra	14-58-27	Ven	Rahu	Kethu	Jup
4.	Scor.	15-49-50	Mars	Sat	Jup	Ven
5.	Sagit.	15-53- 6	Jup	Ven	Sun	Sat
6.	Capri	15—35—49	Sat	Moon	Jup	Rahu
7.	Aqu.	15— 8—28	Sat	Rahu	Kethu	M er
8.	Pisc.	14-6-34	Jup	Sat	Rahu	Kethu
9.	Aries	14 582 7	Mars	Ven	Ven	Sat
10.	Tau	15 -49-5 0	Ven .	Moon	Sat	Sat
11.	Gem	155306	Mer	Rahu	Ven	Moon
12.	Cancer	15-35-49	Moon	Sat	Jup	Mer

Fortuna 17°-17'-29" VIII 14°-6'-34"	Rahu 12-14-20 IX 14° - 58'-27"	Moon 6-30-16 X 15° - 49'-50"	Uranus 7-27-00 XI 15° - 53'-06"
VII 15° - 8'-28"	Sri	T	XII 15°-35'-49"
VI 15° - 35'-49"		M D -626	Sat 10-21-26 I 15° - 8'-28" Ven 23-30-07
V 15° - 53'-06" Jup 2-9-46	IV 15° - 49'-50" Mars 9-36-10	III 14° - 58'-27" Keth 12-14-20 Sun 4-21-15 Mer(P.) 2-25-20	II 14° - 6'-34" Nept 20-14-46

TABLE OF SIGNIFICATOR

Cusp	Planet in the star of the occupant of the cusp	Occupant of the cusp	Planet in the star of owner of cusp	Owner of the cusp
1.	Ven	Ven	Moon	Sun
2.	Moon, Jup, Sat,	Mer, Sun,		Mer
(41162)	Rahu	kethu		
3.	Sun, Mer	Mars	Ven	Ven
4.	5	Jup	Sun, Mer	Mars
5.				Jup
6.			Mars	Sat
7.			Mars	Sat
8.	Kethu	Rahu	v:	Jup
9.		Moon	Sun, Mer	Mars
10.			Ven	Ven
11.			98 	Mer
12.	Mars	Sat		Moon

HOUSES SIGNIFIED

s Cuspal point	s Cuspal point As Cuspal point				In Star		In sub		In Sub Sub	
Sub lord	Sub Sub Lord	Tener.	Owns	Occu		8	Occ Owns	80	Owns	8
v		SUN	-	~	Mars 4/9	6	3 Ven 3/10	-	1 Sat 6/7	5
'	=	Moon	12	o	Sun 1	8	2 Mer 2/11	N	2 Jup 5/8	4
•		Mars	6,9	6	Sat 6/7	12	12 Ven 3/10	-	Sat 6/7	12
	1,7,12	Mer(R)	2,11	8	Mars 4/9	6	Kethu	0	2 Jup 5/8	4
2.4.6.12		al a	5,8	4	Kethu	8	Ven 3/10	53 -	Jup 5/8	4
1.9.1		Ven	3,10	-	Ven 3,10	-	Sat 6/7	12	Rahu —	80
9	5.9	Sat	6,7	5	Kethu	8	Sat 6/7	12	Ven 3/10	-
. «		Rahu	ı	60	Kethu	8	Mer 2/11	8	2 Moon 12	0
3.7	•	Kethu	1	N	Rahu	80	Sat 6/7	12	Rahu	00
					Fortuna Point: L + moon	Be	135°-8'-28" 36-30-16			
					ung		171-38-44 (or) 184-21-15	S G	531-38-44	- 10 (

ccc 22° - 34' ST 5 - 8 - 39	-8-39				CALC	CALCUTTA BIRTH
ST H M	Ξ	(2)	(3)	(10)	£	(12)
23° 5 - 12	168° - 57 - 59"	197" - 24' - 35"	227° - 56' - 56"	78 - 57' - 56"	109 - 40' - 35"	138* - 54' - 15"
2	168 - 2 - 57	196 - 26 - 54	226 - 59 - 12	78 - 2 - 29	108 - 45 - 37	138 - 58 - 38
0-4	0 - 55 - 02	0 - 57 - 41	0.57-44	0 - 55 - 27	0 - 54 - 58	0 - 55 - 37
	3302"	3461"	3464"	3327"	3288"	3337"
39	537 or	5.62	563	143	536	542
240	0-8-57	0-9-22	0-9-23	0-9-1	99-8-0	0-8-5
	168 - 11 - 54	196 - 36 - 16	227 - 08 - 35	78 - 11 - 30	108 - 54 - 33	139 - 07 - 40
22° 5 - 12	168 - 53 - 1	197 - 30 - 4	228 - 3 - 38	78 - 57 - 56	109 - 31 - 45	139 - 42 - 32
	167 - 57 - 35	196 - 32 - 6	227 - 6 - 15	78 - 2 - 29	108 - 36 - 45	138 - 46 - 41
	0 - 55 - 26	0 - 57 - 58	0 - 57 - 23	0 - 55 - 27	0 - 55 - 00	0 - 55 - 51
	3326"	3478"	34.13"	3327"	3300"	3351"
39	541" or	292	923	54	236	545
240	0-9-1	0 - 9 - 25	0 - 9 - 19	0-9-1	95-8-0	9-8-0
æ	168 - 06 - 36	196 - 41 - 31	227 - 15 - 34	78 - 11 - 30	108 - 45 - 41	138 - 55 - 46
Diff. between 22°	(+) 0 - 5 - 18	(-) 0 - 05 - 15	69 - 90 - 0 (—)		(+) 0 - 08 - 52	(+)0-11-54
& 23 = 60 For 34' = b	0-8-0	(-) 0 - 05 - 59	29-8-0(-)		(+) 0 - 06 - 01	(+) 0 - 8 - 44
a+b KP Avanamsa	168 - 09 - 36	196 - 38 - 32	227 - 11 - 37	78 - 11 - 30	108 - 50 - 42	139 - 02 - 30
1						

24 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	-30 85 - 48 - 42 -30 Gem (11) -30 25 - 48 - 42 -30 256 - 48 - 42 -30 256 - 48 - 42 rence of 22 & 23° and add with 2	55-9-30 85-48-42 Tau (10) Gem (11) 25-9-30 25-48-42 Scor. (4) Sagitt. (5) 25-9-30 256-48-42 rom the difference of 22° & 23° and add with 2
Tau (10) Gem (11) 25-9-30 25-48-42 Scor. (4) Sagitt. (5) 25-9-30 256-48-42	10) Gem (11) -30 25 - 48 - 42 -30 256 - 48 - 42 -30 256 - 48 - 42 rence of 22° & 23° and add with 2	10) Gem (11) -30 25 - 48 - 42 -30 256 - 48 - 42 -30 256 - 48 - 42 -30 256 - 48 - 42 -90 256 - 48 - 42 -90 256 - 48 - 42
Scor. (4) Sagitt. (5) 25 - 48 - 42 25 - 9 - 30 256 - 48 - 42	(4) Sagitt. (5) -30 256-48-42 rence of 22° & 23° and add with 2	-30 25 - 48 - 42 -30 256 - 48 - 42 -30 256 - 48 - 42 Ford 22° & 23° and add with 2
Scor. (4) Sagitt. (5) Cap 25 - 9 - 30 256 - 48 - 42 26 - 0	(4) Sagitt. (5) Cap -30 256-48-42 26-0 rence of 22° & 23° and add with 22°.	(4) Sagitt. (5) -30 -256 -48 -42 -6 -48 -42 -6 -48 -42 -6 -6 -48 -42 -6 -6 -48 -6 -6 -6 -6 -6 -6 -6 -6 -6 -6 -6 -6 -6
25 - 8 - 30 256 - 48 - 42 26 - 0	256 - 48 - 42 26 - 0 256 - 42 26 - 0 27 28 - 0 28 29 29 29 29 29 29 29	Tence of 22, & 23 and add with 22 and add with
	rence of 22° & 23° and add with 22°.	rence of 22° & 23° and add with 22°.
		1SI

In this case the figures required are for 22° - 34°. Find out the proportion for 34° from the difference of 22° & 23° and add with 22°.

Don't forget to deduct Ayanamsa.

S M G

CALCUTTA BIRTH

CUSP POSITION

Cusp			RASI	STAR	SUB	Sub - Sub Lord
		D M S				
1.	Leo	25— 7—36	Sun	Ven	Mer	Rahu
2.	Virgo	23-36-32	Mer	Mars	Mars	Sat
3.	Lib	24— 9—37	Ven	Jup	Mer	Kethu
4.	Scor.	25— 9—30	Mars	Mer	Rahu	Mer
5.	Sagit	25-48-42	Jup	Ven	Mer	Sat
6.	Capri	260030	Jup	Mars	Rahu	Mars
7.	Aqu.	25— 7—36	Sat	. Jup	Mer	Rahu
8.	Pisc.	23—36—32	Jup	Mer	Mars	Sat
9.	Aries	24— 9—37	Mars	Ven	Mer	Mer
10.	Tau	25— 9—30	Ven	Mars	Rahu	Mer
11.	Gem	25-48-42	Mer	Jup	Kethu	Kethu
12.	Cance	r 26—00—30	Moon	Mer	Rahu	Mars

For 27°-16'-37" Vill 23° - 36'-32"	Rahu 12-14-20 IX 24° - 9'-37"	Moon 6-30-16 X 25° - 9'-30"	Uranus 7-27-00 XI 25° - 48'-42"
VII 25° - 7'-36"	Sri	ST	XII 26°-00'-30"
VI 26° - 00'-30"	Lat 22° 34' N Long 88° - 24' KSK/KP Ayana Sun Desai Y Balance 1—	amsa 23° - 2' M D	sat 10-21-26 Ven 23-30-07 I 25°-7'-36"
V 25° - 48'-42" Jup 2-9-46	IV 25° - 9'-30" Mars 9-36-10	III 24° - 9'-37" Keth 12-14-20 Sun 4-21-15 Mer(R) 2-25-20	II 23° - 36'-32" Nept 20-14-46

TABLE OF SIGNIFICATOR

Cusp	Planet in the star of the occupant of the cusp	Occupant of the cusp	Planet in the star of owner of cusp	Owner of the cusp
1.			Moon	Sun
2	Moon, J, Sat, Ra	Mer, Sun, K		Mer
3.	Sun, Mer	Mars	Ven	Ven
4.		Jup	Sun, Mer	Mars
5.				Jup
6.		V	Mars	Sat
7.		3 ;	Mars	Sat
8.	Kethu	Rahu		Jup
9.		Moon	Sun, Mer	Mars
10.			Ven	Ven
11.	: ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::			Mer
12.	Mar, Ven	Sat, Ven		Moon

HOUSES SIGNIFIED

Sand Mass Witches

Cuspal point Sub lord	Cuspal point As Cuspal point Sub lord Sub Sub Lord	Planet			In Star		qns uj		In Sub Sub	
			Owns	Occu. pies	Owns O	8	that Lord Occ Owns	90	that Lord Occ Owns	90
		SUN	-	N	Mars 4/9	က	Ven 3/10	5	12 Saten	ţ
	1	Moon	5	o	Sun 1		Mer 2/11		10 mg	<u>, </u>
2,8	6,12	Mars	4,9	ø	Sat 6/7	1 5	12 Ven 3/10	4 5	0/c dnc 2	4 (
1,3,5,7,9	4,9,10	Mer(R)	2,11	N	Mars 4/9	. n	Kethu	מ ע	2 Jun 5/8	<u> </u>
		di	5,8	4	Kethu	N	2 Ven 3/10	54	12 Jup 5/8	4
-	İ	Ven	3,10	54		2	12 Sat 6/7	5	Rahu —	c c
1	2,5,8	Sat	6,7	54	Kethu	O,	2 Sat 6/7	5	Ven 3/10	5
4,6,10,12	1,7	Rah	1	∞	Kethu	N	Mer 2/11	N	Moon 12	6
=	9,11	Kethu	I	0	Rahu	80	Sat 6/7	5		00
					Fortuna Point: Lag + Moon	_	145°-7'-36" 36-30-16			
					ung –		181-37-52 (or) 184-21-15		541-37-52	

28° - 38' ST 4 - 23 - 43	.43					DELHI BIRTH	
ST H M 29° 4 - 24 4 - 20	(1) 158° - 59' - 1" 158 - 6 - 50	(2) 185° - 37' - 49" 184 - 41 - 33	(3) 215° - 45' - 13" 214 - 47 - 12	(10) 67* - 46' - 55" 66 - 50 - 20	(11) 88° - 42' - 14" 88 - 47 - 42	(12) 130° - 20′ - 29″ 129 - 27 - 01	
P. 28	0 - 52 - 11 3131" 2909" or 0 - 48 - 29 158 - 55 - 19	0 - 56 - 16 3376" 3137" 0 - 52 - 17 185 - 33 - 50	0 - 58 - 01 · 3481" 3234" 0 - 53 - 54 215 - 41 - 6	0 - 56 - 35 3395" 3155" 0 - 52 - 35 67 - 42 - 55	0 - 54 - 32 3272" 3040" 0 - 50 - 40 99 - 38 - 22	0 - 53 - 28 3208" 3040" 0 - 50 - 40 130 - 17 - 41	
28° 4 - 24 4 - 20	158 - 49 - 10	185 - 39 - 46	215 - 51 - 22 214 - 53 - 13	67 - 46 - 55	99 - 31 - 54	130 - 5 - 23	
818	0 - 52 - 34 3154" 2831" or 0 - 48 - 51	0 - 56 - 36 3396 3155 0 - 52 - 35	0 - 58 - 09 3489 3242 0 - 54 - 2	0 - 56 - 35 3395 3155 0 - 52 - 35	0 - 54 - 34 3254 3024 0 - 50 - 24	0 - 53 - 40 3220 2992 0 - 49 - 52	
Diff. between 28° & 29° = 60' For 38'	158 - 45 - 27 (+) 0 - 19 - 52 (+) 0 - 6 - 12	185 - 35 - 45 (-) 0 - 01 - 55 (-) 0 - 01 - 13	215 - 47 - 15 (-) 0 - 06 -09 (-) 0 - 3 - 53	67 - 42 - 55	99 - 27 - 44 (+) 0 - 10 - 38 (+) 0 - 6 - 34	130 - 01 - 35 (+) 0 - 16 - 06 (+) 0 - 10 - 12	
(—) KP Ayana-	158 - 51 - 39	185 - 34 - 32 23 - 02 - 00	215 - 43 - 22 23 - 02 - 00	67 - 42 - 55	99 - 34 - 18 23 - 02 - 00	130 - 11 - 47	

135 - 49 - 39	165 - 32 - 32	192 - 41 - 22	44 - 40 - 55	76 - 32 - 18	107 - 9 - 47
Leo (1) 15 - 49 - 39	Virgo (2) 15 - 32 - 32	Libra (3) 12 - 41 - 22	Tau (10) 14 - 40 - 55	Gem (11) 16 - 32 - 18	Cancer (12) 17 - 9 - 47
Aqu. (7) 15 - 49 - 39	Pisc. (8) 15 - 32 - 32	Opposite Houses Aries (9) 12 - 4:1 - 22	Scor. (4) 14 - 40 - 55	Sagitt. (5) 16 - 32 - 18	Capri (6) 17:- 9 - 47

-38'. Find out the proportion for 38' based on the difference of 28° & 29° and add it to 28°. In this case, the figures required are for 28° Don't forget to deduct Ayanamsa.

DELHI BIRTH

CUSP FOSITION

Cusp	•	D M S	RASI Lord	STAR Lord	SUB Lord	Sub - Sub Lord
1.	Leo	15—49—39	Sun	Sun	Sun	Jup
2.	Virgo	15-32-32	Mer	Moon	Jup	Rahu
3.	Lib	12-41-22	Ven	Rahu	Mer	Mer
4.	Scor.	14-40-55	Mars	Sat	Rahu	Moon
5.	Sagit.	16-32-18	Jup	Ven	Moon	Rahu
6.	Capri	17— 9—47	Sat	Moon	Sat	Mars
·7.	Aqu.	15—49—39	Sat	Rahu	Ven	Moon
8.	Pisc.	15—32—32	Jup	Sat -	Jup	Mer
9.	Aries	12-41-22	Mars	Kethu	Mer	Rahu
10.	Tau	144055	Ven	Moon	Jup	Kethu
11.	Gem	16—32—18	Mer	Rahu	Ven	Jup
12.	Cancer	17— 9—47	Moon	Mer	Mer	Ven

	V		
For 17°-58'-40" VIII 15° - 32'-32"	Rahu 12-14-20 IX 12° - 41'-22"	Moon 6-30-16 X 14° - 40'-55"	Uranus 7-27-00 XI 16° - 32'-18"
VII 15° - 49'-39"	Sri		XII 17°-9'-47"
VI 17° - 9'-47"	- 10 10-10-0 Section 1	1020 12	Sat 10-21-26 I 15° - 49'-39" Ven 23-30-07
V 16° - 32'-18" Jup 2-9-46	IV 14° - 40'-55" Mars 9-36-10	III 12° - 41'-22" Keth 12-14-20 Sun 4-21-15 Mer(R) 2-25-20	II 15° - 32'-32" Nept 20-14-46

TABLE OF SIGNIFICATOR

Cusp	of the occupant of the cusp	Occupant of the cusp	Planet in the star of owner of cusp	Owner of the cusp
1.	Ven	Ven	Moon	Sun
2.	Moon, Jup, Sat, Rahu	Mer, Sun, kethu		Mer
3.	Sun, Mer	Mars	Ven	Ven
4.		Jup	Sun, Mer	Mars
5.			(S)	Jup
6.			Mais	Sat
7.			Mars	Sat
8.	Kethu	Rahu		Jup
9.		Moon	Sun, Mer	Mars
10.		()	Ven	Ven
11.				Mer
12.	Mars	Sat)(Moon

HOUSES SIGNIFIED

Cuspal point	Sub lord Sub Sub Lord	Planet			that Lord		in sub		In Sub Sub	
			Owns	Occu		8	13-23-4	ö		80
3 		SUN	-	Ø	Mars 4/9	က	3 Ven 3/10	-	1 Sat 6/7	5
S	4,7	Moon	12	6	Sun 1	8	2 Mer 2/11	N	2 Jup 5/8	4
1	9	Mars	4,9	က	Sat 6/7	5	12 Ven 3/10	-	Sat 6/7	7
3,9,12	3,8	Mer(R)	2,11	8	Mars 4/9	60	3 Kethu	N	2 Jup 5/8	4
2,8,10	1,1	Jup	5,8	4	Kethu	N	Ven 3/10	-	Jup 5/8	4
7,11	57	Ven	3,10	-	Ven 3,10	-	Sat 6/7	7	Rahu —	œ
•	1	Sat	6,7	2	Kethu	~	Sat 6/7	4	12 Ven 3/10	-
*	2,9,5	Rahu	ı	60	Kethu	N	Mer 2/11	N	Moon 12	6
1	5	Kethu	1	œ	Rahu	60	Sat 6/7	7	Rahu	ω
					Fortuna Point: Lag + Moon	D	135°-48'-39" 36-30-16			
					561		172-19-55 (or) 184-21-15	•	532-19-55 184-21-15 347-58-40 Pisces 17-58-40	\$

PLANETARY POSITION WORKING SHEET

	NOS M	MOOM M Sec	SUN MOON MARS MER	MER.	J. 88.	VEN VEN	۵.	RAHU N Sec	M Sec D M Sec D M Sec	NEPT D M Sec
5 30 AM 21-10-48 5 30 AM 20-10-48	184-28-00	37-56-00	RET 184-28-00 37-56-00 219-41-00 182-16-00 242-11-00 183-28-00 25-14-00 218-58-00 183-30-00 242-00-00	RET 182·16·00 183·30·00	242-11-00	143-38-00	143-38-00 130-22-00	12-13-00		67-27-00 170-15-00 67-27-00 170-13-00
in 24 lits or 1440 mis- Mo-	1-00-00	12-42-00	0-43-00	1-14-0	0-11-00	1-10-00	0-50-00	0.3-00	1	0- 2-00
Birth 2-48 AM can 21-10-48 11 M 10 (26-48) (-) (5-30) + 21-18 cr 1278 mts, Passed other 20-10-48	46 11 M 21-16 20-10-48			Periodical A deduct	₹			Detail for	£	£
Proportorale Moton 8 1278 Add	(Add these with 20-10-48 figures) 0-53-15 11-16-16	0-10-48 fgur 11-16-16	0.36-10	0-36-10 (-)1-4-40	6.0	1-2-1	0-4-26	(-)0-2-40		0-1-48
	184-21-15	36-30-16	184-21-15 36-30-16 219-36-10 162-25-20	182-25-20	242-9-46	ł	143-30-7 130-21-26	12-14-20	67-27-0	67-27-0 170-14-48
The position Means	4-21-15	1-06-9	Scorpto 9-36-10	2-25-20 RET	\$ 2 8.2	23-30-7	10-21-28	Aries 12-14-20 Add 180° for opposite algor KETHULs LIBRA 12-14-20	7.27.0	20-14-48

NB

- (1) BIRTH TIME IN IST is to be taken into account to prepare the planetary position i.e. In otherwords — the Birth sidereal time or the time worked out for longtitude is not to be taken. There is no confusion. Take Birth Time in IST only.
- (2) The movement of proportion, based on 24 Hrs movements should be calculated correct to the seconds as illustrated above.
- (3) No Ayanamsa deduction is to be made, on the above planetary position.
- (4) For Birth at Madras, Bombay, Calcutta or for any place, the planetary position as arrived at for Birth Time IST will be same - but, the Bhava charts will be different depending upon the different Latitudes.

UDU MAHA DESAI BALANCE AT BIRTH

Moon at Birth 36°-30'-16": Krithigai star owned by sun upto 40°-0'-00". Therefore, Krithigai (sun Desai) Balance 3°-29'-44" or

1 year 6 months 26 days

To work out Desai Balance use the Table Below:

			EXAMPLE HOROS	OPES
	10	1		Y-M-D
			3°	1-4-6
Planet	Y-M-D	Y-M-D	29.	0-2-18.3
Keth/ Mars	0-6-9	0-0-3.15	44' or 44'	0-0- 1.9
Venus	1-6-0	0-0-9	60	
Sun	0-5-12	0-0-2.7	Sun Desai Balance	1-9- 26
Moon	0-9-00	0-0-4.5	Sun Desai Dalance	1-3- 20
Rahu	1-4-6	0-0-8.1		
Jup	1-2-12	0-0-7.2		
Sat	1-5-3	0-0-8.55		
Mer	1-3-9	0-0-7.65		

THIS IS COMMON AND APPLICABLE FOR ALL BIRTHS AT MADRAS - BOMBAY - CALCUTTA - HYDERABAD & DELHI

PLANET POSITION

S. No.	PLANET		AYANA SITION M S	RASI or SIGN LORD	STAR or CONSTEL LATION	SUB	SUB - SUB LORD
1.	Sun	184	I - 21 - 5	Ven	LORD	Ven	Sat
2.	Moon		- 30 - 16	Ven	Sun	Mer	Jup
3.	Mars	219	- 36 - 10	Mars	Sat	Ven	Sat
4.	Mer	182	- 25 - 20	Ven	Mars	Keth	Jup
	(RET)						
5.	Jup	24	2 - 9 - 46	Jup	Keth	Ven	Jup
6.	Ven	143	3 - 30 - 07	Sun	Ven	Sat	Rahu
7.	Sat	130	-21 - 26	Sun	Kethu	Sat	Ven
8.	Rahu	12	- 14 - 20	Mars	Kethu	Mer	Moon
9.	Kethu	192	2 - 14 - 20	Ven	Rahu	Sat	Rahu
10.	Uranus	67	-27 - 00	Мег	Rahu	Rahu	Sat
11.	Nept.	17	0 - 14 - 46	Mer	Moon	Kethu	Sat

AYANAMSA

(Vexation Ends) BY K.S. KRISHNAMURTHI

Sir, you always advise your followers to use your Ayanamsa only stating that it is correct. Can you kindly adduce proof for this?

"True it is an absolute necessity to fix ayanamsa. So saying a young person with his wife enters.

"Alright. Daily I can take an example and in a fortnight, I shall discuss at least 12 horoscopes and prove beyond any doubt that my ayanamsa alone is correct. What is needed is careful attention, honest attempt, open mind and unambiguous explanation."

"Very good, Sir".

"Let us take the horoscope of a Girl. work out the time of Marriage, the ruling planets of the Husband; the transit of planets at the time of marriage; the Ududasa - Vimshothari"

He who just entered suggests "Sir, will you mind taking my wife's chart as an example?"

Certainly: Let me be furnished with a correct horoscope, erected following strictly what I advised in K.P. and correct statement of true facts. Then my principles, findings and dicta are applicable universally to all human beings. The rule is only one.

"Sir, this is my wife's chart. It is erected according to your instructions.

VII 13.27	Mars 4.24	Kethu 7.47	X 12.56
Sat 12.30	VIII 13.56	IX 13.56	
Ven 2.22	Ura 17.50	Moon 14.27	
Mer 24.33			XI 11.56
Sun 24.27			
VI 12.56		i	
Jup 25.17			XII 12.56
V 11.56			Nep 27.3
IV 12.56	III 13.56	II 13.56	Asc. 13.27
Fortuna 3.27	Rahu 7.47		

Moon dasa balance, 6 years, 7 months and 29 days.

PLANET SI	GNIFIES HOUSES	HOUSE	SIGNIFICATORS
Sun	5, 6, 12, 4 & 7	I	Mercury
Moon	9, 11	H -	Venus, Rahu, Kethu
Mars	8, 7, 3, 8	.111	Mars, Rahu
Mercury	5, 4, 7, 1, & 10	IV	Sun, Jupiter
Jupiter	7, 5, 4, 7	V	Sun, Mercury, Jupiter, Venus, Saturn
Venus	5, 4, 7, 6, 2 & 9	VI	Sun, Venus, Saturn, Rahu, Kethu

Saturn	6, 5, 6	VII	Sun, Mars, Mer- cury, Jupiter, Venus, Rahu
Rahu	6, 2, 3, 8, 7	VIII	Mars, Rahu, Kethu
Kethu	6, 8, 2, 9, 12	IX	Moon, Venus, Kethu
		X	Mercury
		ΧI	Moon
		XII	Sun, Kethu

For marriage, houses 2, 7 and 11 are to be judged. Significators are,

Venus, Rahu, Kethu, Sun, Mars, Mercury, Jupiter. Venus, Rahu, Moon.

Actual date of marriage 19.11.61. The period running at that time was Rahu Dasa Mercury Bhukti Jupiter Anthra Rahu Shookshma.

The day of marriage Sunday ruled by Sun, Star was Revathi Governed by Mercury when Moon was in Pisces owned by Jupiter. Lagna at the time of marriage Scorpio owned by Mars, Jyeshta constellation Governed by Mercury.

By transit, Rahu was in Mercury star Ashlesha; Mercury was

in Rahu star Swathi; Jupiter was in Sun star Venus sub; Saturn in Sun star Jupiter sub; Sun was in Mars sign Jupiter star Rahu sub; Moon in Jupiter sign Mercury star. Thus, the significators of 2, 7 and 11 houses ruled (as per dasa system) the dasa, bhukti anthra and shookshma. Transit agrees.

If one uses any ayanamsa, in value less than 22o.44' for 1938. Then the result will be that the marriage ought to have been Rahu Dasa Kethu Bhukti.

Now, the method adopted by me alone can clarify the doubt. What are ruling planets of the husband. "Hallo: What is your Star?

"Visaka 4th quarter in Scorpio Sign"

"So Jupiter and Mars are your ruling planets".

"What is the day of your birth?".

"Thursday".

So Jupiter is the lord of the day.

"Where is your lagna?"

"Same Virgo, Sir "I was born at half past six on 16.3.1933

"Hence Mercury is another Ruling planet".

Let us think for a minute. Can Kethu give marriage? In this case he cannot as Kethu has to offer the results of Sun in 6; also the 9th and 2nd houses. The day of marriage should be Friday. The star of the husband must be one of the 3 stars of Kethu. Nothing agrees.

*Hence reject if the ayanamsa is less than 22°44' for 1938.

Shall we try to find out why she had a daughter born on 12.12.1962 Wednesday, Moon in Gemini, in Mrigasira star in Scorpio lagna. She was running Rahu Dasa Kethu Bhukti Jupiter anthra. These three planets are the significators of the houses 2 and 5 indicating birth of a baby to a lady. (11th is important for gents). Mercury in the constellation of Jupiter in 5 and sub of Mercury in Jupiter's star gave the birth on a Wednesday when Moon was in Mercury sign, Mars star. All, in full, agree.

"Sir, let us verify how I got married on that day and my wife is born in Virgo lagna, Taurus Rasi and Rohini (Moon) Star".

"Yes, this must be done. As per your statement your Lagna is Virgo; Star Visaka 4th quarter.

The correct horoscope is as follows:-

Ura 28-58 Mer 14-7 VII 6-6 Sun 2-41	VIII 6.12	IX 7.12	X 6.12
Ven 23-28 Rah 14-09 VI 5.12	6.30 P.M. 16.3.1933 at 13-04 N and 80.15 E		XI 5.12
Sat 19.43 V 5.12			XII 6.12 Mar 12.31 Ket 14.9 Nep 15-32 Jup 24-36
IV 6-12	III 7-12 Moo 1.36	II 6-12	Asc. 6-6

Dasa balance Jupiter 2 years 0 Month 29 days.

On 19.11.61 the period was Mercury Dasa Moon Bhukti Jupiter Anthra.

PLANET SIGNIFICATOR OF WHICH HOUSE		HOUSE PLANETS SIGNIFICATORS		
Sun	12, 6, 12, 4 ⁻ & 7	1	Mercury	9 5
Moon	12, 2, 11, 7 & 4	11	Moon, Saturn	Venus,
Mars	12, 12, 3 & 8	Ш	Mars	

Mercury	5, 7, 1 & 10	N	Jupiter, Moon, Venus, Sun
Jupiter	6, 12, 4 & 7	V	Rahu, Saturn, Mercury
Venus	12, 6, 2 & 9	VI	Rahu, Saturn, Mercury
Saturn	2, 5, 5 & 6	VII	Mercury, Moon, Sun, Venus, Jupiter
Rahu	6, 6, 5 & 6	VIII	Mars Venus, Kethu, Jupiter
Kethu	6, 12 & 6	X	Mercury
		XI	Saturn, Moon
		XII	Mars, Moon, Venus, Sun, Mars, Kethu, Jupiter

Therefore, significators of houses 2, 7 and 11 are Moon, Venus, Saturn, Mercury, Moon, Venus, Sun, Jupiter, Moon, Saturn.

Time of marriage Mercury Dasa, Moon Bhukti, Jupiter Anthra, Venus Shookshma.

Wife's ruling planets: Mercury, lord of lagna, Moon lord of the Nakshathra, Venus, lord of the Moon rasi; Jupiter aspects both rasi and lagna and Moon was in Jupiter sub for your wife at the time of birth.

On the day of marriage, Nakshathra Revathi, i.e., Mercury star Jupiter sign. Lagna of marriage; Mars sign Scorpio, Mercury star Jyeshta.

Transit of planets: Moon in dasanatha Mercury Star: Mercury was in Venus sign Rahu Star: Jupiter was in Venus sub.

The chart is correct: Marriage actually took place on 19.11.61. Note that Jupiter was in 3 to him and Saturn, lord of 6 conjoined lord of 8 Mars. These are considered to be dangerous by Hindus and Westerners respectively. But K.P proves that the traditional system is incorrect.

Suppose you use any other ayanamsa, star itself may change: dasa bhukti definitely changes. No science can be strictly followed. But in traditional system any one of the thousand rules may explain, after the event.

on 2.12.62 he had a daughter born. What was the period then?

Mercury Dasa Mars Bhukti Rahu Anthra. Girl's star was Mars star, Mrigasira in Mercury Sign, Gemini: Lagna was in Mars sign Scorpio.

If one uses any other ayanamsa and applies stellar method to him not only K.P. is useless but also the whole world.

K.P. predicts with certainty: reiterates when again questioned: comes true when one waits and sees: But all other methods whatever they are, they have no single rule; no cogency; no coherence; no systematic application and never sure success. So, they have to say "tendency". Also, the astrologers have some mythological story and say that there is a Curse for astrology and hence if fails' another will say only Brahma can be sure of prediction. These are only to take shelter whenever one fails. Let any one predict any event to the day, applying any single rule which should be applicable universally; non but K.P. followers can do it. Let them apply in case of twins.

If anyone wants to improve himself or herself let them learn K.P. I can only advise. I can suggest. Unless the customers are to be benefitted by clear out correct predictions one will not study and apply K.P. This is my view.

SECOND EXAMPLE

Sir, I have a doubt about the position of Moon. Some say that I am born in Uthrattathi some say Revathi. I would like to hear from you and the correct one.

This is the chart cast at Tinnevelly by an astrologer; he says that my star is Uthrattathy. This Chart from Bombay also says Uthrattathy Dasa balance differs by one and half years. This chart I got from the neighbouring stage. It shows Revathi star and Mercury Dasa balance 15 years and odd.

Here the difference between Tinnevelly and this is dasa balance is nearly 3 years. Which am I to take as a correct one?

I referred to the Ephemeris for the time 5.36 P.M. given by him on 27.7.1929. His day of birth was a Saturday. Moon was in 16° 15' Pisces Nirayana. Therefore your star is Uthrattathy. Saturn dasa balance is 0 years 6 months 19 days. The chart cast at Bombay is very nearly correct except a few days difference in dasa bhukti system. Position of other planets correct. The dasa balance given from Tinnevelly is to be corrected. The other chart mentioning your Nakshathra as Revathi is wrong. It is absured.

"How do you say so, Sir?" It is what you feel or is there any scientific explanation for your finding?"

What are the ruling planets, today for this time of judgement?

Today it is Saturday - lord Saturn.

Star - Pushya - Lord Saturn.

Rasi - Cancer - Owner Moon.

Lagna now at 9.45 A.M. I.S.T. at Bombay is 5° Pisces. It is Jupiter's sign Saturn star Saturn sub.

Therefore Saturn, Moon and Jupiter are very strong ruling planets for this moment.

Hence your star is in Jupiter sign Saturn star Jupiter sub and Moon sub sub.

If Moon sub sub is to be there then the dasa balance should be between 8 months 26 days and 6 months 10 days. It can neither be beyond 8 months 26 days and less than 6 months 10 days. According to raphael and Krishnamurthi ayanamsa it agrees - The other two valves are therefore wrong.

If Revathi is to be your star, then Mercury should be one of the ruling planets at the moment of judgement. Mercury finds no place here.

THIRD EXAMPLE

Let me give 3 sets of horoscopes which a person has for his time of birth.

Rahu 7.47		Lagna 7º12 Moon 29.43
Venus 8.03 Sat 0.20	26.12.1931, 5.30 P.M. 13.04 N 80.15 E Saturday Ephemeris or Drig	Jup 29.24
Mars 19.43 Sun 10.58	Mer 29.34	Kethu 7.47

Rahu		Lagna Moon
Venus	Vakya	Jupiter
Saturn Mars Sub	Mercury	Kethu

If you take the other ayanamsa value which you had been thinking to be correct, the chart is as follows:

Rahu		Lagna
	5.30 P.M. 26.12.31	Moon
Venus	13.04 N	Jupiter
Saturn	80.15 E Saturday	
Mars		Kethu
Sun		
Mercury		

The third Chart neither agrees with Drig nor Vakya. Look at the position of planets. Which can this person follow or use it?

I asked him, mention now which position of which planet you want to fix. When that is fixed, you will be knowing which to follow.

Let me know whether my Guru is exalted or not?

Right. Take the ruling planets for this moment 3.58 P.M. 17.2.69 at Bombay. Lagna fag end of Gemini owned by Mercury. Star Sathabisha governed by Rahu. Sign Kumba owned by Saturn. Day Monday, ruled by Moon. Hence Mercury, Rahu, Saturn and Moon are the ruling planets. Sun is not a significator, Hence it is not Simha. It is only cancer. That also Moon sign, Mercury Star, Saturn, sub, Rahu, sub sub. So Jupiter should be between 290 24' to 290 43' in Cancer.

So my Jupiter is exalted.

'Yes'.

Another person comes and says "Sir, a few say that my Sade-Sati will be over and Saturn moves on to Aries on 21.2.69. Is it true". Asks an Aquarius rasi-born.

Though I wish that you are free from such a depressing factor that Sade-Sati is over, yet the truth is that Pisces is occupied by Saturn. It will be there till 6.3.69. After all 16 days only more.

Each almanac differs from the other. How to find out the truth. Does Saturn move on 21.2.69? So the question is where will Saturn be on 22.2.69. Just now I explained to him that the ruling planets for this moment are Mercury, Rahu,

Saturn and Moon. Rahu represents Jupiter. Hence Saturn continues to be in Jupiter sign Pisces, in Mercury star Revathi, Saturn sub, Mars is not a ruling planet now. If Saturn's position is in Aries, Mars will be a ruling planet.

"Can I complete S.S.L.C.? I was told that Saturn and Rahu are in 11 Jupiter balam is there as it is in 5 and so on. Actually I have made many attempts. I am ashamed to say. But one thing is certain. I will be appearing till I come out successful".

"Do it. But, what is your reason to take such decision?

What Sir, girls somehow pass easily. They work hard. They concentrate. But, I could not. When I am to get married, If I remain, If I remain as a unqualified candidate and the girl whom I have to marry has passed. What will be my prestige and position. I should make all efforts and pass. I failed once, twice, thrice, four times.

Now let me make one more serious attempt. I was all alone thinking that the beneficial Gochara result will help me. I have found them to be useless. Now Sade-Sathi has started. I want to see what happens. All these lead me to doubt whether my chart is right.

Alright: Give your birth particulars.

Born at Salem at 2.48 A.M. on 21.10.1948.

So the following is your horoscope:

VIII 13-14	Rahu 12.14 IX 15-14	Moon 6.31 Merc 15-14	Ura. 7-27 XI 14-14
VII 13-44	2-48 A.M. 21.10.1948		XII 14-14
VI 14-14	11-39 78-12		Sat 10-21 Leg 13-44 Ven 23-31
V 14-14 Jup 2-09	IV 15-14 Mars 9-36	III 15-14 Ket. 12-14 Sun 4-22 Mer 2-24	II 13-14 Nep 20-14

Sun Dasa balance 1 year 6 months 24 days.

Doar boy, the chart has been worked out correctly. That which you have is also very correct.

"Sir, I know that the calculation would be correct. He is working in a bank. He follows only your system. But I doubt whother my time of birth is correct.

Do you doubt the time of birth by more than an hour? No, Sir, it can be less than half an hour, this way or that.

What is the time now?

11-50 A.M.

Date 23.2.69

Day: Sunday

Where is Moon?

Taurus owned by Venus

Star

Karthik ruled by Sun

Where is the lagna? If you work out you will find that it is in Venus sign Sun star.

For the time of birth given by you, the lagna falls in Sun's sign Venus Star Venus sub Sun sub sub. It is O.K.

Yours horoscope is correct. But to predict that you will pass if at all when Saturn is in 11 to Moon is wrong. All people born in Rishba Rasi neither fail nor all pass. If they threaten that Rishba Rasi will be having Sade-Sati and they cannot pass hereafter is also incorrect.

You read my article on "Saturn's transit". Only hereafter you enter into a better, prosperous and successful period.

RULING PLANETS AND INTERVIEW

On 11.3.1969 I had to meet a very high official. A friend of mine phoned me saying that he would be happy if I meet him at 3 P.M. I and one of my students had been to his office at the stroke of 3.30. I was told that he was in a conference urgently arranged and that he would be back in a few minutes. Also he added that the officer knew that you would be coming at 3.30 p.m. and asked me to request you to wait for a few minutes. I looked into the Ephemeris. Then I recollected that his star was Jyeshta.

I worked out when the lagna will be in Mars star Mercury sub or Mercury star Mars sub. I worked out and found that Mercury star Mars sub will rise in the East for Bombay at 4.20 p.m. So, at about 3.35 p.m. I told the clerk that he would · not call me before 4.20 p.m. So I and my friend will attend to our other business and be here by 4.20 p.m. This reply was strange to him. After 4.15 p.m. he returned. Just at 4.20 p.m. the officer came. Many were waiting. He himself came to visitor's room and called me to come in and we went into his room. He took his seat along with me and discussed. He wanted me to find out his correct birth star. He had a doubt whether it was Jyeshta or Anuradha. I told him that if he would have been born in Anuradha. I would have met him at 3 p.m. as he fixed up the time for interview as at that time lagna rising in the East was in Saturn's star Pushya. I met him lagna was Ashlesha star, Moon was in Jyeshta star. There is no doubt to declare that your birth star is Jyeshta: Luckily at that time Moon was in Jyeshta itself. As saturn is not a ruling planet, his star can never be Anuradha but only Jyeshta.

Thus ruling planets correctly reveal only whe. . 'K. . Ayanamsa is used. If one uses a less value, the prediction must miserable fail.

So only finding out the ruling planets and applying properly one need not waster one's time. Astrology saves the valuable time.

Arrived at Madras: Classes at Madras started. Many highly qualified and very well-settled officials have joined. They were hearing my lectures. One of the members, professor in Medical College, Madras came on Sunday 23.3.1969 at 12 p.m. His question was whether his lagna was Kadaka or Simha.

I noted the ruling planets.

Sunday ruled by Sun.

Lagna Taurus ruled by Venus.

Lagna in 7° 7' in Sun Star Kethu sub.

Moon was in Karthik star Venus sub.

Therefore, Sun, Venus, Kethu, were the ruling planets.

His time of birth was 7.10 p.m. on 29.1.1928 at Madras. He had charts already erected by a few. Some say Cancer lagna and some Leo lagna.

If Cancer is to be lagna, Moon, Mercury, Saturn or Jupiter should be the ruling planets. It is not so.

This method of fixing is ever true. Never it fails. It is convincing and correct. One can follow after verifying in known cases and confirm the truth.

Once I published that a young daughter of mine who knows about ruling planets gave reply by the same Telephone trunk call which was a surprise to them. I was in the Government House talking to them at Bangalore. Ex-president Dr. Radha Krishnan also was in Government House in another hall. He came to attend a function in Lal Bagh where Kulapatiji Mr. K.M. Munshiji arranged a conference. Mrs. V.V. Giri wanted to find out how far I have perfected the science. So she asked me to mention the birth star of a bridegroom who married her grand-daughter I told her. You know the star. I can at once say. Now you dial 440 449 to Madras. My child will say. You put only this question. Never say who are, etc. The question should be "What is the birth star of a young gentleman?" In 10 seconds my daughter replied Simha Rasi Maka Star.

"Is it, Yeshini?"

"No"

"Is it a magic?"

"No"

"What is it, then?"

"It is only K.P."

Thus, on thousands of occasions - not one or two they have mentioned the correct Lagna, Star, Rasi etc. Indeed a surprise to consultants as they were correct.

"Let me request those who call that K.P. is not a discovery, to answer, Clarify and remove the doubts of consultants, applying any single rule universally".

The day is fast approaching to put an end to classify that Astrology is a science of tendency and that Brahma alone can say with certainty.

The day is come to claim that Astrology is an exact science needing more research scholars to make honest attempts with open mind only a little is to be done.

DOMESTIC ENVIRONMENT

1. ARIES - MESHA

People born in Aries love their home and family. They will always try to be in the midst of their family members. They try to keep the house neat. They are excellent hosts and keep good company. They never lack in friends who will pay visits often and keep them cheerful. They want it.

2. TAURUS - RISHABA

Men born in Taurus are good providers and the women are good home-makers. There will be happy and harmonious

life. They have comfort, rest and peace at home. They like their own native land. Scenery will attract them. Peace, pleasure, prosperity, property, popularity and position mean much to them.

Taureans always supply sumptuous food and give feast to others. If they are not served, served similarly by the guest, they cannot tolerate. They decorate the house, keep furniture etc., tidy and maintain their home in good condition.

3. GEMINI - MITHUNAM

Gemini people will always be busy due to the frequent visits of business partners, customers, relatives and friends. They delight in entertaining them. Though they appear to be a little extravagant, yet they will manage their family well. They have great liking to decorate their home and keep it in modern style. They will not tolerate the nuisance of the owner of the house in which they are put up if the owner happens to be mean-minded and they will not mind changing the residence even frequently till they get a satisfactory one. As Gemini people cannot keep idle without ever thinking of how to improve the house, they will be doing something or other to give comforts to all the members in the family. They are ever fair.

4. CANCER - KATAKAM

Cancer-born natives are devoted to their family. They have their home wherever they live. The home and the garden always keep them engaged. They derive pleasure here alone. They collect old things and store them in shelves and kitchen. Though they make constant journeys, they are at home only when they are in the home. They do not mind taking trouble to make their life comfortable. They invite friends and attend on them to their fullest satisfaction. Cancerians will prefer to be always at home surrounded by children and attended by a pleasing wife.

5. LEO OR SIMHA

The health of the native needs relaxation. Absolute peace, harmony and happiness will keep him cheerful. Just as a king will expect his subjects to be sub-missive, and expect always favours from them, so also the Leonians will try to be the leader in the house and expect all those at home to be co-operative, obedient and grateful. They want the members of the family to have a broad outlook, and to be magnanimous and noble.

Leonians choose their good friends. They entertain them often. They never hesitate to spend money to maintain

prestige and honour. Even when the sandalwood is pulverised and thrown into fire, it does not lose its fragrance. So also, these people will never think of economy, even when they are driven to a state of poverty. They will lead the same aristocratic life and their home will be an impressive one.

They will spend much on dress, screen, cloth, curtains, furniture etc. They will keep the home tidy with all the attractive trimmings, decoration, etc.

If the male is born in one sign, but the wife is born in Leó, then it is a problem for him to please her by supplying her dress, jewels, etc. If he does not satisfy her, the readers can guess his fate. His home will be his Hell in this life. But if he is able to meet her demands, then his home is his Heaven.

6. VIRGO - KANNI

Wander - Just is your nature change of your residence, more to have a change in the scenery and in the neighbourhood, will be more frequent just like the Cancer-borns.

You want to keep everything in order. You expect your problem to work methodically, and put up a show when guests are invited. You will insist on your people to keep everything neat saying, "A place for everything and everything in its place". You prefer to entertain others in your

home, but you do not return their visits. As Jupiter is the lord of the 4th house, you will always be lucky in procuring houses to live in. Even, when you invest on buildings, you will be able to purchase them in a good locality. The value of the property will shoot up during the period of Jupiter. But Saturn, being the lord of the 5th and 6th houses, and Mars, and lord of the 8th house they show that there may be losses in investments during the joint periods of Saturn and Mars. It is advisable for Virgoans to dispose their holdings during their Jupiter periods, when the price will be higher, whether it is investment or shares or lands. Otherwise, a necessity will arise during the following Saturn's period, and it will be disposed of at a loss, and you will be depressed.

Jupiter is not only lord of 4th but also the lord of the 7th house. Hence, your partner in life will be God-fearing, religious, law abiding and true. Therefore you will have a peaceful and pleasant domestic life.

7. LIBRA - THULAM

Their family life will be happy because Librans try to maintain peace. Their houses will be well furnished and all luxuries will be made available. Decorations, designs, paintings, will be of high standard. Costly ornaments will be in their possession. They always prefer to lead such pleasant lives and enjoy all fruits of life. They love their home, family and their

property. Generally, the parents of natives born in Libra will rush home from their office, mostly to spend their time at home with their little group. They will not normally give interviews to their subordinates or customers at their residence. They will finish everything in their office.

8. SCORPIO OR VRISCHIKA

For your jolly good life, and success in your career, environment plays the vital part. Your ambition is that whatever you say in any matter, must be implicitly followed by others. You do not relish any one to boss over you whereas you are happy to boss over others. You cannot lead your life without all comforts and convenience. Yoy spend much beyond your capacity. Expecting some income, you will spend away in advance, wait for the returns and repay the loan. You want to design your home to your taste.

Even during adverse periods, you accept situations about you. You, very ably, turn them to your advantage. You create happiness. You prove to be successful and more happy than others placed under similar conditions.

9. SAGITTARIUS - DHANUS

You do not like your close relatives. But you will be generous

to the other sex and be friendly with them. You will spend much on your children. Those who have no children will spend on educational institutions, or renovation of temple, etc. You will be kind to others and not to your kith and kin. At home you are a failure, even though the 4th house is owned by the lord of the ascendant. You are denied the independence which you desire to have in your house.

10. CAPRICORN - MAKARAM

Generally, Capricorn-borns are not very anxious to get married early. But they have it, because they have to marry and are destined to marry. They do not want many children. Yet they become the parents of a large family. They never fail to do their duty. They love their wives and children, but do not display their love. So the children may mistake that the Capricorn-parents treat them coldly.

They collect things which are beautiful and will try to have a library of their own. They hate noise but want a quite atmosphere and privacy. They prefer seclusion and peace. These are the reasons for their family members to mistake them.

Even if the wife (or husband) is argumentative and quarrelsome he (or she) will be mostly absent from the scene; and avoid to retort; the fire of anger will have its own natural death. Why? Because the care for the prestige and the honour of a family life even though the partner is bent upon doing harm.

11. AQUARIUS - KUMBHA

As Aquarians are very social, they keep the home clean and tidy so that they can entertain friends frequently. The home will be well furnished. There may be a collection of antiques, arranged in modern fashion. Aquarians never hesitate to purchase ultra modern electric appliances for the convenience of the workers at home. It gives a pleasure to possess them yet more pleasure is enjoyed by demonstrating them to the visitors. They give up the traditional and old cumbersome, troublesome methods but they adopt all modern ones to save time and trouble. There is quality in Aquarius only in this respect; that is they prefer solitude and also society. These people are more dutiful to their relatives. Neither they are very much attached nor detached.

12. PISCES - MEENA

These people generally welcome many friends. Why? Not to entertain them but the guests will patiently listen to the narration of the troubles of Pisces-borns, pity them and give them mental solace. Honestly, they can always invite

astrologers who will be useful for such encouragement (7th house is ruled by Mercury for astrologer).

They are desirous of giving higher education to their children. They would also wish to have an educated partner in life. If she is not educated, they will try to educate the wives also.

They love happy domestic life. They are very affectionate at home. Throughout their married life, they do not get tired to carry out the romantic legend of lovers. One defect - as it appears to me and to many - is that they will be tempted with every pretty face and their fancies will be wandering. Most of those who touch the sculptures of different figures in the temples and those who stand for some time near the cloth shops where they have kept the figures of both the sexes, are those born in Pisces. It is due to Moon, the lord of the 5th house. Every figure is a thrill for them. It supplies them enough food for imagination alone.

KENDRA ADHIPATHYAM

Question: What is Kendra Athipathyam? Are benefics, by nature owining Kendra signs, always evil in their dasas? Do they invariably end one's life?

Answer: "Kendra" is a Sanskrit word. It is also called Chatustaya and Kantaka. The sign in which Ascendant (Lagna) falls, the fourth sign counted from the birth sign, the seventh sign from the ascendant (lagna) and the 10th sign counted from the ascendant are termed Kendra signs or Kendra houses. It may also be used with reference to the position of the sign occupied by Moon and other planets. On such occasions, it is said that a planet in a Kendra to Moon or in a Kendra to any other planet. By that, it is meant that they are conjoined with it in the same sign, or in the 4th, 7th or 10th signs counted from the sign occupied by the Moon for any other planet.

(i) The exact longitude of the Ascendant in a sign or that of the Moon is not at all taken for calculation. But only the sign in which the Ascendant falls is taken whether it is zero degree 1 minute or 29 degree 59 seconds in that sign. So also when counted from Moon or any other planet, only the sign which they occupied, will be taken for judgement and not the Bhava (the House). In most of the horoscopes, the first part of a sign may be included in a house (or Bhava) and the second part of the sign will be in the next house (or Bhava): Whether the planet is in the first part or in the second part of the sign and in whichever house it is, it is not at all taken to find Kendrasthana, but only the sign in which the planet is found. For Example; There are two births. One is born in Mithuna Lagna in the 29th degree and the other in the 3rd degree in: Pisces (Meenam) Lagna. The former has Moon in the second degree in Sagittarius (Dhanus) and the latter has Moon in the 25th degree in Gemini (Mithuna). In the first instant, Moon is said to be in the 7th Kendra even though the longitude is only 153 degrees and in the other case, the longitude is 112 degrees and Moon is said to be in the fourth Kendra.

In the first birth chart, as Gemini happens to be the lagna, the Kendra houses are Gemini, Virgo, Sagittarius and Pisces. In the second chart lagna is called the Lagna Kendra, Gemini (4th), Virgo (7th) and Sagittarius (10th) Kendra.

Meridian according to one's latitude of birth may fall in the neighbouring sign to the tenth sign. Yet the tenth sign alone

should be taken as the Kendra sign. For example, one may be born in the second degree in Cancer (Kataka Lagna) at Lucknow. Actually, in meridian will be 24 degrees (Meena) Pisces. But, yet Mesha should be taken as the 10th sign or otherwise called Dasama Kendra House and not Pisces (Meenam) as Calculations are made, sign to sign and not house to house.

Therefore, when one counts the Kendrasthanas from lagna, the ascendant, the fourth sign, the seventh sign and the tenth sign are the four Kendra houses.

Each sign has its own lord and the owners of 1, 4, 7 and 10th houses are called as Kendra-Athipathis. When one desires to assess the nature of a planet, whether it is a benefic or a malefic by owning a Kendra house, it is to be counted only from the Lagna and not from the Moon or any other planet.

It is said that Jupiter (Guru), Venus (Sukra), the waxing Moon (Chandra) and the unafflicted Mercury (Budha) are the natural benefics and if they happen to own either the first or the fourth or the seventh or the tenth house, they turn out to be unfavourable in their disposition. It is also added that if they occupy either in the second or the 7th house, they cause untoward results and death to the native.

It is further stressed that Jupiter and Venus are more evil than Moon and Mercury when they own the Kendra signs.

The malefics by nature, Sun (Surya), warnning Moon, Mars (Sevvai), afflicted Mercury (Budha), and Saturn, by owning

the Kendra houses become auspicious and will offer desirable results.

Kendrathipatya Dosha refers only to one's health and longevity, whereas it will not prove to be either ineffective or undesirable as regards the results indicated by the houses they own.

Ascendant denotes one's health and longevity. Lord of the Ascendant will invariably protect the native and improve his health and position provided he does not occupy the evil houses, i.e., sixth or eighth or twelfth. Lord of the 4th house indicates one's permanent possession, one's vehicle and one's mother. The 7th house shows the characteristics of the partner in life, the time of marriage, and other matters indicated by the 7th house. The 10th house indicates one's profession, name, fame, reputation, honour, ancestral property etc.

When one does research, taking the horoscopes of people born in Mithuna (Gemini) and in Virgo (Kanni), Mercury is considered to be a Kendrathipathi by owning the Kendra houses, one and four for Gemini born and one and ten for Virgo; Jupiter (Guru) as well as the 7th house to Virgo. People born in Gemini generally take up a profession indicated by Jupiter being lord of 10 and prosper, especially during Jupiter's Dasa. One is born in Mrigasirisha Nakshathra third pada when Gemini was rising in the east. Where he completed 22 years during Guru Dasa, he appeared for the competitive examination and passed the

I.A.S. at the first attempt itself. He got married in his age of 26 during Mercury sub period with a bride born in Revathi Nakshathra (ruled by Mercury in Jupiter's sign Pisces or Meena); during Venus sub period he had a child born in Visaka Nakshathra (Jupiter's star in Venus sign Libra). The birth of the child coincided with his promotion.

During Mars sub-period he enjoyed another promotion and during Rahu sub-period he had the opportunity to go overseas. Horoscopes of such favourable experiences show that Kendrathipathya does not make a planet necessarily evil, offering only adverse and unfortunate results, even though there are a few instances of death during the Dasa or Bhukthi of the Kendradhipathi.

Many with their ascendant in Virgo (Kanni) having Jupiter in the 2nd or in the 7th house have out-lived Jupiter Dasa. Similarly, many people born in Aquarius (Kumba), Leo (Simha) and Scorpio (Vrischika) have Venus in the second or in the 7th house. They also enjoyed satisfactorily during Venus Dasa and a few are now running Sun Dasa, a few Moon Dasa, and a few Mars Dasa, etc. Therefore, one need not unnecessarily entertain any fear when an astrologer repeats the proverbial Kendrathipathya Dasa are Jupiter and Venus and says that they are very evil and one will not survive those dasas. They will be at a loss if they come across with people out-living such so-called Kendrathipathi Dasa. (Deputy Prime Minister Shri Morarji Bhai Desai).

Another person born in Scorpio as ascendant and in Jyeshta

Nakshathra third pada gets married during Venus Dasa, Jupiter sub-period (Bhukti-apahara) and Mercury sub-sub-period (anthara) with a bride born in Poorvashada Nakshathra, lord of which is Venus. Has Venus as lord of seven denied him the pleasure through marriage, in his dasa? Also who is the lord of the constellation Poorvashada in which the bride is born? Is it not Venus? Yes, as lord of 7, it has done its good, by offering the person a beautiful wife born in its own star.

but the exception is that the lord of 8th house cannot be a malefic if it also owns the ascendant or lagna (Jathakachandrika), when the 8th house indicates one's longevity, death, etc. When such an evil can be warded off by owning the first house why will not Kendrathipatya Dosha be mitigated if a planet owning either the 4th or the tenth house also happens to be the lord of the ascendant or lagna? We are of strong conviction that planets owning the ascendant and not ill-posited can never do erm, but ever be a saviour just as a father will protect his child, whether he is a butcher or a robber.

It is also mentioned that a planet becomes evil by owning 3rd of 6th or 8th or 11th house, if they have any connection with Rajayoga Athipathis either as lord of 9 or lord of 10, they also will cause beneficial results in their sub-periods, in the Dasa of the Rajayoga Athipathi. From this one can understand that lord of 10 is capable of rendering the evil planets

favourable. Lord of 10 is to offer the most desirable and lucky results causing Rajayoga. Therefore, if they own any other Ker dra house they not only offer beneficial results indicated by the 10th house but also reduce the evil attributed to the results of the other Kendra house. For example, to Gemini Lagna, Jupiter is lord of 7 and 10. He will invariably do good to the native in matters relating to the 10th house and to a great extent modify any evil indicated by the 7th house, if Jupiter is not afflicted otherwise.

Therefore, only when they own the houses 4 and 7, they may be considered as evil for one's health as well as longevity and not to the other results denoted by the 4th or the 7th house.

Let us take a few example horoscopes of those who have survived such Kendhradhipathi Dasas and continue to live now,

(i) Hon Dy. Prime Minister Shri Morarji Bhai Desai. He was born in Mithuna Lagna-Jupiter is Kendhrathipathi lord of 7. It is in Marakasthana, the second. Only during Jupiter Dasa he came to the front of the public, became popular and was all along prosperous.

Now he is running Saturn Dasa Rahu Bhukti.

Is not Jupiter Kendhradhipathi? Is he not in Marakasthana? If his parents would have consulted a traditional Astrologer, what that honest person would have predicted is known to you, all. They would have threatened saying that during

Jupiter Dasa, he would have had his end. But what is the fact? How did he survive? Thousands of rules can be quoted to exempt after knowing the fact.

But apply Krishnamurti Padhdhati. You will find that Jupiter, due to the sublord could not end his life. This rule applies to one and all and the rule is only one.

When I visited Bombay, Delhi, U.P. and Calcutta, many parents were proud of showing the horoscopes of their children born between 12-10-1954 and 23-11-1954 and saying that they have promising children who could become Prime Minister of India. Of those charts there are a few born on 25-10-54 and 21-11-54 in Mithuna Lagna, having Moon in Poorvapalguni, Saturn exalted, Jupiter exalted and Mars exalted as is found in Morarji Bhai's chart. A few have children born with Moon in Kendhra to Jupiter, causing many Rajayogas. Every one of them is entertaining hopes just like those who have purchased lottery tickets and dreaming to have won the first prize.

How many Morarjis are born? How many can become the Prime Minister? Oh God.

What can a poor Astrologer do, when he is asked to find out the time when the child can become the Prime Minister? The parents do not ask whether they can expect their children to join Politics and in due course whether they can become popular. They take it for granted that they should become Prime Minister, one day or the other and they want to know only the time when their children can hold that

position. Probably they think that only in his family a child is born in those days. Probably, they do not know that in a minute many would have been born then and each of them would be expecting such a fortune.

One gentleman has a son born at 9-54 P.M. on 26.10.1954 at 13004' N 80° 15' E. Horoscope is as follows:

X 7-43	XI 10-43	XII 12-43	Asc 12-50 Ket 15-49
IX 6-43	RASI		Jup 6-45 II 8-43
Mars 10-16 VIII 8-43			III 6-43
Rahu 15-49	VI 12-43	Sat 17-51	IV 7-43
VII 12-50	Ven 6-56	Mer 16-42 Sun 9-36 Moon 8-57	

Rahu Dasa balance 14 years and 11 months.

On 26.9.69, he enters Jupiter Dasa.

Queries are --

(1) Will the boy be shortlived as Jupiter is lord of Bhadhakasthana, Marasthana and Kendhrasthana. As Kendhradhipathi is he not evil?

(2) Can he be a leader among politicians?

Ans: It is not wise to apply the general rule followed by Traditional Astrologers as it proves to be absurd. They have no rule to find out the condition under which a Kendradhipathi will prove to be evil and under which circumstances, Kendhradhipathi cannot do any harm.

But Krishnamurti Padhdhati does not accept Kendhradhipathya. It rejects it. Whereas the conditions under which a planet can be advantageous or can be disagreeable are explained clearly in K.P.

When a planet, benefic by nature, owns any of the houses, 1, 4, 7 and 10 called as Kendhradhipathi and is considered to be adverse to one's longevity. This is traditional. K.P. says whether a planet is by nature a benefic or a malefic, whether it owns Kendhra or Kona or any sign, it must lay its icy hand, if it is connected with Bhadhakasthana or Marakasthana and it is in the sub of a planet who is the significator of "Maraka".

Hence for people born in Gemini, if Jupiter is the owner of Bhadhaka, Kendhra and Marakasthanas and is in 2, in exaltation, it will indicate the death of only those in whose horoscopes, Jupiter is in the sub ruled by any of the significators of Bhadhaka and Marakasthanas.

Suppose a planet is in 2nd Bhava or 7th Bhava and some other planets A, B and C are in the constellation of the planet in 2 or 7, then A, B, C as well as the planets in 2 or 7 become the significators of death. So Jupiter in Cancer, if it is situated

- Street

in the sub of the above planets, will surely cause death in its period or sub-period. But, even though Jupiter is the significator of the houses 2 and 7 and is deposited in the sub governed by plants which are in no manner connected with houses 2 and 7 Jupiter can never kill the person. Here, the traditional Astrology miserably fails.

In this chart, the significators of the houses 2 and 7 are Mars (deposited in the constellations of lord of the sign where second cusp has fallen); Kethu, Moon, Sun, Mercury and Saturn in Rahu's Constellation; Jupiter has gone to Lagna Bhava. It is weaker than Rahu, a node. Jupiter as lord of 7 would have been bad if the sub lord is an evil significator of death. As Mercury is the constellation of the node in 7, yet it is in the sub of Venus who is not a significator of death. So Mercury cannot cause death. Hence Jupiter in Mercury sub can never do harm. He will lead a successful life all through Jupiter Dasa. The tradition should have this rule in addition.

Now write down all significators and note down in which sub, they are. Eliminate those deposited in the sub governed by planets not connected with Maraka. Select among those significators of death such planets which are deposited in the sub of the significators of Maraka. You will find that this native will live long and outlive Kendhradhipathi Dasa.

VIPARITHA RAJA YOGA

Kalidas has mentioned in his book "Uttara Kalamrita" Kanda 4 Sloka 22 the disposition of planets which cause viparitha Raja Yoga, i.e. "if the lords of the houses, 6 8 and 12 occupy either jointly or individually the houses 6,8 and or 12 with each other or if they mutually interchange their places and provided these planets do not have any connection with other planets not owning 6 or 8 or 12, then the person will be a king and he will command much wealth. He will establish a good name and enjoy his life".

All the Hindu sages have unanimously declared that the houses 6, 8 and 12 counted from lagna or from any Bhava are detrimental to lagna or that Bhava to which a planet happens to be the lord of 6 or 8 or 12 counted from the Bhava. So 6, 8 and 12 are said to be unlucky houses and indeed evil.

Not only the lords of the houses become adverse but also planets posited in these houses are still worse. Occupants are stronger than the owners. Therefore, planets occupying 6, 8 and 12 must be worse than the lords of the houses.

When the lords of the houses and also planets deposited in those houses are considered to be undesirable then normally one will expect that lords of these houses occupying the above said houses must be causing untold miseries. But, actually, in practice, it was found that under certain circumstances these planets owning these evil houses and also occupying such houses, cause brilliant results which are unexpected and it is a 'Viparitha' to normal expectation and intelligent anticipation. Actually when we enjoy Raja Yoga, it is a 'Viparitha' and so it is termed as 'Viparitha' Raja Yoga' 6th house indicates disease, debt, difficulty and dispute; 8th house denotes distress, difficulty, danger, drowning. etc, and 12the house shows loss, swindling, secret inimical activity, depression, etc. Therefore nobody would like to have any of the matters signified by the 3 houses.

One may ask 'How can lords of 6 and 8 in mutual exchange cause 'Viparitha Raja Yoga'?

If lagna represents the person, then the 7th houses stands for the opponent. The 6th house to a person is 12 to the 7th, i.e. 'Vraya' house, and the 8th house will be the second to the 7th. It is a well-known fact that an interchange between the lords of the houses 2 and 12 bring loss wealth, loss of

members in the family loss of eye-sight and effective speech, etc. Therefore, when the opponent loses, the native gains. That is why the interchange between the lords of 6 8 and bring about beneficial results to the native, success in competition, in litigation, winning in election by the transit of the planets 6 and 8.

In my friend's horoscope lords of 6 and 8 were in mutual exchange and he had been running the conjoined period of these two planets.

My friend did not work hard for a victory in the election. But he had an opponent who spent most extravagantly. His friends were much benefited monetarily but they were not true to him. Actually they voted for my friend accepting money from his opponents and my friend had a thumping majority. Thus if lords of 6 and 8 are mutually exchanged due to the secret inimical activity, the opponent will lose and the person will gain.

This rule will not apply to Capricorn lagna born as lord of 6th is Mercury and lord of 8th is Sun. Mercury and Sun cannot occupy Gemini and Leo causing mutual exchange, i.e., Parivarthana Yoga. Further according to Krishnamurti Padhdhati, it is not necessary that planet should interchange the houses 6 and 8. But it they are occupying the constellations of lord of 6 and lord of 8, i.e. the lord of 8 in the constellation of lord of 6 and lord of 6 in the constellation of lord of 8 will produce the above said Yoga. Even in such

Yogas benefits mutually exchanged between the houses 6 and 8 are not harmful to the opponent to the extent to which malefics owning the houses 6 and 8 interchange. No doubt benefics in 6,7 and 8 cause Lagnadhiyoga to the native and mutual exchange of the benefics by nature owning the houses 6 and 8 bring about a transaction wherein the native is benefited; whereas he, with whom he transacted, has not gained equally. Supposing a person purchases a property during Jupiter Dasa, Venus Bhukthi, lords 6 and 8 for Vrishaba Lagna, then this person purchases it at a cost lower than the market rate; whereas the seller loses to some extent. Anyhow he is capable of disposing even an unsalable property during that period. Also it may be noticed in a few business people chart that the husband transfers certain shares and also gives gift to his wife when the wife runs a period conjointly rule by lord of 6 and 8. It is also likely that those who run the joint period of lords of 6 and 8, borrow money as a handloan without any record and he who lent the money suddenly passes away thereby the native who runs the period of lord of and 8 temporarily is not honest and he appropriates the amount.

The mutual exchange between lord of 12 and either lord of 8, or 6 will be advantageous to the person only when they happen to be malefics. Benefics by a nature owning the 8 and 12 houses by mutually having the interchange of places cannot do harm to the opponent and also much good to the native. Because if lord of at 6 is a benefic and if it occupies

the second houses or if lord 2 occupies the 6th house, the natives Bank position will improve by borrowing or by service. Therefore benefics owning the houses 8 and 12 mean that they own the houses 2 and 6 to the opponent. Therefore benefics cannot bring either loss or throw any obstacles to the opponent. Hence the native cannot gain much.

The Viparitha Raja Yoga is really enjoyed only when the lords of 6 and 8 happen to be malefics by nature. Indeed the period may cause injury to the person and he may suffer from disease or meet with an accident, yet monetarily it will do good to him. Or in any competitive examination or election he will come out successful. This is purely applicable to those who are born in Mithuna Lagna, Kanya Lagna, Mesha Lagna and Vrischika Lagna.

Mutual exchange between lords of 6 and 12 will be advantageous to younger brother, mother and father. Interchange between the lords of 8 and 12 will be advantageous to mother, wife and elder brother. Interchange between lords of 6 and 8 will be advantageous to children.

According to Krishnamurti Padhdhati, planets occupying the constellation of the lords of 6 or 8 or 12 also owning the houses of 6 or 8 or 12 will bring about the above said Yoga provided the sub is ruled by a benefic by lordship.

ASHTAKA VARGA

In Hora Makaranda it is said that planets moving in the Zodiac produce such results which they indicate as they pass from one sign to the other and in the 12 signs. By Janma Rasi, it is meant that Moon is in a particular sign for that person. They take the Lagna and only the seven planets from Sun to Saturn which rule the seven days of the week. Therefore they judge from the 8 positions. So the astrologer is to prepare different maps: called Sun Ashtaka Varga: Moon Ashtaka Varga: Mars Ashtaka Varga and so on up to Saturn Ashtaka Varga.

While calculating one need not consider whether the planet is in the beginning or in the middle or in the end of the sign. Calculations are made from sign to sign. The houses are not taken (This is defect number-1).Let me take for any one planet and explain. When one prepares Sun Ashtaga Varga: one makes a map of the Zodiac with twelve signs in it. Sun contributes beneficial results as are indicated by it when it passes in the signs1,2,4,7,8,9,10 and 11 counted from the sign it occupied in the birth chart. Similarly Moon contributes for beneficial results in Sun Ashtaga Varga when Sun passes through the signs 3,6,10 and 11 counted from the sign occupied by Moon. Mars contributes for favourable results in Sun Ashtaka Varga when Sun passes through the signs 1,2,4,7,8,9,10 and 11 counted from the sign occupied by Mars in the birth chart:Similarly for Mercury 3,5,6,9,10,11 and 12 from the position of Mercury:for Jupiter count from Jupiter's sign the signs 5,6,9 and 11:for Venus 6,7 and 12: for Saturn 1,2,4,7,8,9,10 and 11:The seven planets are over. But Ashtaga Varga means eight vargas. So the eighth varga belongs to Lagna.Lagna contributes in Sun Ashtaka Varga, the signs counted from Lagna 3,4,6,10,11 and 12.Mark it as "L" Satyacharya says:

Janma Kalae, Graha yatra Sthitha
Thath Sthana tho nganyaeth
Reeka Bindhooscha Thathrarkshae
Charach Chaeth palam Graha.

Bhadarayana, Devakirti, Yavaneswara, Gunakara have advocated this method. Varahamihira and Vaidyanatha Dikshithar have mentioned in the Books Brihat Jataka and Jataka Parijata:

Modern Astrological Research Institute Madras has found :-

- Ashtaka Varga is incomplete:hence incorrect.
- 2. It needs more research to make it correct
- 3. Therefore, full details are not furnished. But why I declare that the literature available at present is insufficient is there are certain rules to get correct results. They are given below:-
- (a) Longevity or Ayus is calculated from Ashtaka Varga.Let one calculate for three people on the same day, in the same hospital at an interval of 40 minutes, all the three having the same lagna.

Then the lagna sign is the same. The positions of the planets also remain same. Hence by calculation all the three will get the same Ashtaka varga figure. Ekadipatya reduction, Rasi Gunakara remain the same. Therefore if we calculate longevity, all the three persons should have the same figure, same span of life. Of the twins born in the same sign as lagna one lives and one dies. Longevity is not the same. They do not die on the same day after having lived for some years. When such is the case days of toil to erect so many Ashtaga Varga tables reduction calculation etc; This was found to be useless. For transit results also it is not applicable to twins.

My first principle is that one can follow any system which is applicable to twins or persons born in the same sign as Lagna on the same day in the same locality.

Regarding prosperity it is said that persons born in Mesha Aries lagna having Sun in Aries-Mesha in exaltation and Jupiter in 4 in Cancer - Kataka in exaltation will become a King and will have 1,00,000 horses in his command. Jupiter remains for 1 year in Cancer ,on an average. In that year, Sun will be in Aries for a month. In that month on an average 1/12th of the births may be in Aries. Therefore one in 1728 births will be having such a disposition. How the above rule can be quoted? To whom and when? Probably, One living or dead centuries ago having had such a position will be taken and this rule should be applied and appreciated. I pose this. There are horoscopes of persons living and suffering born in 1955, 1932, 1920, 1907 and so on, between 13th April and 13th May at the time of sunrise in Aries lagna. Just like this rule is not universally applicable to all, Ashtakavarga is.

(b) Take the horoscopes of husband and wife born on different dates. Calculate the number of the children. Harmony among the couple will be affected as the figures never tally.

Hence Ashtaga Varga is not explained. Yet to convince the readers, in this book I shall explain with the help of Twin birth horoscope and convince the readers.

Example:

In Example (1)both the twins were born at an interval of 1 minute. Look at the Sarvashtaga Varga chart. The figures are the same for both the twins. But their longevity, health, finance, education etc. are totally different.

HOROSCOPE OF TWIN I - FEMALE

DATE OF BIRTH: 12-2-1987 THURSDAY

TIME: 9:20 HRS (IST) PLACE: BANGALORE

NAVAMSA: 23:40:33 SUNRISE/SET: 6:27/18: (LMT)

SIDEREAL TIME: 18:27: 4 HRS

NAKSHATRA: PUSHYAMI 3 PADA

THITHI: (SUKLA) CHTRADASI YOGA: AYUSHMAN

PLANET	DEG	MIN	STAR
SURY	299	13	DHANISTA
CHAN	100	2	PUSHYAMI
KUJA	0	28	ASWINI
BUDH	317	22	SATABISA
GURU	332	3	PURVABORA
SUKR	254	13	PURVASADA
SANI	235	42	JYESHTA
	SURY CHAN KUJA BUDH GURU SUKR	SURY 299 CHAN 100 KUJA 0 BUDH 317 GURU 332 SUKR 254	SURY 299 13 CHAN 100 2 KUJA 0 28 BUDH 317 22 GURU 332 3 SUKR 254 13

PADAM	RULER	PLANET	DEG
2	KUJA	RAHU	350
3	SANI	KETU	170
1	KETH	LAGN	344
4	RAHU	URAN	242
4	GURU	NEPT	253
1	SUKR	PLUT	196
3	BUDH	GULI	4

MIN	STAR	PADAM	RULER
35	REVATHI	2	BUDH
35	HASTHA	4	CHAN
48	UTRABADRA	4	SANI
5	MOOLA	1	KETU
25	PURVASADA	1	SUKR
13	SWATHI	3	RAHU
29	ASWINI	2	KETU

PLANETS UNDER RETROGRESSION: PLUT;

BHAVA (DEG:MIN) 1 2 3 4 5

MIDDLE 344:48 14: 7 43:26 72:46 103:26 START 329:28 359:28 28:47 58: 6 88: 6

6 7 8 9 10 11 12

134: 7 164:48 194: 7 223:26 252:46 283:26 314:51

118:47 149:28 179:28 208:47 238: 6 268: 6 298:47

RESIDENTIAL SURY CHAN KUJA BUDH GURU SUKR

STRENGTH .028 .780 .069 .788 .169 .905

SANI RAHU KETU LAGN URAN NEPT PLUT GULI

.164 .606 .606 1.000 .272 .957 .857 .342

LAGN	KUJA		
GURU	GULI		
RAHU			
BUDH			CHAN
SURY		RASI). -
NEPT			
SUKR	SANI	PLUT	KETU
URAN			

BUDH	KUJA URAN	GULI	
SANI PLUT			
RAHU	N A V	V A M S A	SUKR NEPT .
	LAGN	CHAN	SURY

LAGN GURU RAHU	GULI		
SURY BUDH		B H A.V A	CHAN
NEPT SUKR URAN	SANI	PLUT	KETU

VIMSOTTARI DASAS : SANI DASA REMAINING AT THE TIME OF BIRTH : 9 YEARS 5 MONTHS 10 DAYS

DASA ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS
ON	ON	ON	ON
SANI 24JUL96	SUK 15JUL87	SUR 26JUN88	CHA 27JAN90
BUDH 24JUL13	BUD 21DEC98	KET 18DEC99	SUK 180CT2
KETU 24JUL20	KET 21DEC13	SUK 19FEB15	SUR 26JUN15
SUKR 24JUL20	SUK 23NOV23	SUR 23NOV24	CHA 24JUL26
SURY 24JUL46	SUR 11NOV40	CHA 12MAY41	KUJ 17SEP41
CHAN 24JUL56	CHA 24MAY47	KUJ 24DEC47	RAH 23JUN49
KUJA 24JUL63	KUJ 21DEC56	RAH 8JAN58	GUR 14DEC58
RAHU 24JUL81	RAH SAPR66	GUR 30AUG68	SAN 5JUL71

BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS
ON	ON .	ON	ON
KUJ 5MAR91	RAH 11JAN94	GUR 24JUL96	
SUR 24AUG3	CHA 24JAN5	KUJ 21JAN6	RAH SAUGS
CHA 27JAN16	KUJ 23JUN16	RAH 11JUL17	GUR 17JUN18
KUJ 23SEP27	RAH 23SEP30	GUR 24MAY33	SAN 24JUL36
RAH 12AUG42	GUR 30MAY43	SAN 12MAY44	BUD 18MAR45
GUR 240CT50	SAN 24MAY52	BUD 240CT53	KET 24MAY54
SAN 24JAN60	BUD 21JAN61	KET 17JUN61	SUK 18AUG62
BUD 24JAN74	KET 10FEB75	SUK 10FEB78	SUR 5JAN79

BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS
GUR 14NOV10	SAN 24JUL13
SAN 27JUL19	BUD 24JUL20
BUD 24MAY39	KET 24JUL40
KET 24JUL45	SUK 24JUL46
SUK 24JAN56	SUR 24JUL56
SUR 24DEC62	CHA 24JUL63
CHA 5JUL80	KUJ 24JUL81

HOROSCOPE OF TWIN I FEMALE

SAPTHAVARGA:	RASI	HORA	DREKKANA
SURY	MAKARA	SURY	KANYA
CHAN	KATAKA	CHAN	VRICHIKA
KUJA	MESHA	SURI	MESHA
BUDH	KUMBHA	CHAN	MITHUNA
GURU	MEENA	CHAN	MEENA
SUKR	DHANUS	SURY	MESHA
SANI	VRICHIKA	SURY	KATAKA
RAHU	MEENA	SURY	VRICHIKA
KETU	KANYA	SURY	RISHABA
LAGN	MEENA	CHAN	KATAKA

SAPTAMSA	NAVAMSA	DWADASMASA	THRIMSAMSA	DASAMSA
MAKARA	KANYA	DHANUS	KUJA	MITHUNA
MEENA	THULA	VRICHIKA	BUDH	MITHUNA
MESHA	MESHA	MESHA	KUJA	MESHA
MITHUNA	MEENA	SIMHA	GURU	KATAKA
KANYA	KATAKA	MEENA	SUKR	VRICHIKA
MEENA	SIMHA	RISHABA	GURU	MESHA
THULA	KUMBHA	KANYA	KUJA	MEENA
MAKARA	MAKARA	VRICHIKA	SANI	RISHABA
KATAKA.	KATAKA	RISHABA	SANI	VRICHIKA
DHANUS	VRICHIKA	SIMHA	GURU	MEENA

SARVASHTAGA VARGA CHART:

	MESHA	RISHABH	MITHUNA	KATAKA	SIMHA	KANYA	THULA
SURY	4(0)	5(2)	4(1)	5(5)	4(O)	3(0)	3(0)
CHAN	4(0)	4(0)	5(0)	*2(0)	5(1)	6(O)	3(0)
KWA	*2(0)	6(4)	3(0)	4(2)	3(1)	2(0)	3(0)
BUDH	5(0)	4(0)	4(0)	4(2)	5(0)	2(0)	6(0)
GURU	6(3)	5(1)	3(0)	4(0)	4(1)	4(0)	6(1)
SUKR	3(0)	2(0)	5(1)	6(2)	5(2)	4(1)	5(1)
SANI	2(0)	3(0)	2(0)	3(0)	4(2)	4(1)	3(1)
SARVA	26(3)	29(7)	26(2)	28(11)	30(7)	25(2)	29(3)

VRISCHK	DHANUS	MAKARA	KUMBHA	MEENA	RASI PINDA	GRAHA PINDA	SODYA
6(6)	5(1)	*5(2)	4(1)	0(0)	126	77	203
2(0)	5(1)	5(1)	4(1)	4(2)	59	37	96
4(2)	4(2)	3(1)	3(0)	2(0)	97	39	136
4(2)	7(2)	5(3)	*6(2)	2(0)	79	59	138
5(1)	3(0)	7(3)	3(0)	*6(2)	95	64	159
4(0)	*5(2)	4(2)	4(0)	5(1)	88	44	132
*3(0)	3(1)	6(3)	3(1)	3(0)	67	27	94
28(11)	32(9)	35(15)	27(5)	22(5)			

SHADBALAS (RUPAS):
BENEFIC MOON & BENEFIC MERCURY
(VALUES IN BRACKETS APPLY FOR MALEFIC MERCURY)

	STHANA	DIK	CHESTA	NAISARGIK BALA	KALA BALA
SURI	3.107	.741	.000	1.000	2.276(2,276)
CHAN	3.128	.847	.000	.857	2.532(2.532)
KUJA	5.528	.400	.438	286	1.057(1.057)
BUDH	3.060	.849	.541	.429	3.532(2.745)
GURU	3.567	.931	.801	.571	3.837(3.837)
SUKR	2.992	.009	.544	.714	1.708(1.708)
SANI	2.770	.604	.367	.143	1.554(1.554)

"*DHRÌSHT BALA**	GRAHA SHADBALA	RELATIVE	ISHTA BALA	KASTHA BALA	NET
026(026)	7.098(7.098)	1.420(1.420)	.422	527	105
034(095)	7.329(7.268)	1.222(1.211)	.749	199	.550
.090(.036)	7.800(7.746)	1.560(1.549)	.535	441	,094
092(092)	8.318(7.532)	1.188(1.076)	.288	623	335
.098(.098)	9.805(9.805)	1.508(1.508)	.504	369	.135
018(031)	5.949(5.936)	1.082(1.079)	.483	510	027
.101(.011)	5.540(5.449)	1.108(1.090)	.542	354	.188

BHAVA	1	2	3	4	5
BHAVA DIKBALA	.500	.333	.167	.500	.833
ADHIPATHI BALA	9.805	7.800	5.949	8.318	7.329
	(9.805)	(7.746)	(5.936)	(7.532	(7.268)
DHRISHTI BALA	.122	.326	.790	1.042	.583
BHAVA BALA (NET)	10.427	8.460	6.905	9.860	8.745
	(10.427)	(8.405)	(6.892	(9.073)	(8.684)

6	7	8	9	10	11	12
.333	.000	.167	.667	.500	.833	.833
7.098	8.318	5.949	7.800	9.805	5.540	5.540
(7.098)	(7.532)	(5.936)	(7.746)	(9.805)	(5.449)	(5.449)
1.034	1.330	1.045	. 1.047	.124	.171	084
8.465	9.648	7.160	9.514	10.429	6.544	6.289
(8.465)	(8.861)	(7.147)	(9:459)	(10.429)	(6.454)	(6.198)

Again take example Chart II of another set of Twin, both born within an interval of one minute. Look at the lagna and the position of all the planets in the charts. While the planets occupy identical degrees in the KP chart, the lagna and all other Bhavas are different for the two twins. Now if you consider the two charts in the traditional way taking only Lagna and the 7 planets and work out the Ashtaka Varga figure they will all work out the same. But here the case is different. While Twin I is a male Twin II is a female. Can the sex of the twins be determined if you erect traditional horoscope? Certainly not, because lagna, position of planets all will be identical. On the other hand if the horoscopes are erected as per K.P. system as shown above the sub lord of Ascendent varies and the sublords of several other houses also vary through for some houses, the sub lord remains the same.

Lagna Sublord of Twin I is Rahu and Lagna Sublord of Twin II is Jupiter. Rahu is posited in the sub of Venus which tenants a male sign. So first Twin born at 9.20 AM is a male. Now consider the Asc. Sub lord of TwinII which is Jupiter. Jupiter is in the sub of Rahu occupying Pisces - a female sign. Therefore Twin II is a female. Look at the sub lords of the 12 house cusps of the

twins. There is complete variation in the sub lords which alone account for the differences in the house matters of the twins. So here Ashtaka Varga figures do not help. It is the cusps and their sub lords/sub-sub lords that can distinguish the twins.

Let us consider a IIIrd example, female twins born in an interval of 55 minutes. While lagna of twin I falls in Virgo-Kanya, lagna of twin born after interval of 55 minutes falls in Libra-Thula. Except for this variation in Lagna, the position of planets in the rasis remain the same. Hence the Ashtaka varga figures vary. But in deleanating the various matters such as longevity, finance etc. the Ashtaka Varga figures cannot help. Say for Finance. IInd rasi from lagna of Twin I fall in Libra-Thula. Ashtaka Varga figures 28(3). For Twin II Lagna falls in Thula and her house of Finance is Scorpio - Ashtaka Varga for which is 32(II). At best we can say that Twin II will be better off in matters of Finance than Twin I. Similarly can we say longevity 8th sign of Twin I - Mesha bears 32(4) in Sarvashtaga Varga whereas for Twin II 8th sign Taurus 29(7) carrying more points indicate that Twin II will live for more number of years than Twin I?. Certainly not.

Why? Because here actual house or Bhava Degree is not worked out. Only Rasi position is taken. Actually when Bhava positions and its sublord position or sub-sublord position is taken, the two will definitely vary and longevity is determined based on the sublord and not on the Sarvashtaka Varga of 8th House.

So even in such cases where the interval between the twin births is appreciable as in the above case giving different Sarvashtaga varga figures the Ashtaka Varga system still does not help as to how much actual longevity each one will have, when will they die, how will they die etc. This is because as said above the Ashtaka Varga figures are worked out based on each Rasi and not the cuspal positions of all the twelve house cusps at birth.

HOROSCOPE OF TWIN II - FEMALE

DATE OF BIRTH: 12-2-1987 THURSDAY

TIME: 9:21 HRS (IST) PLACE: BANGALORE

NAVAMSA: 23:40:33 SUNRISE/SET: 6:27/18: 1 (LMT)

SIDEREAL TIME: 18:28: 4 HRS

NAKSHATRA: PUSHYAMI 3 PADA

THITHI: (SUKLA) CHTRADASI YOGA: AYUSHMAN

NIRAYANA LONGITUDES:	PLANET	DEG	MIN	STAR
	SURY	299	13	DHANISTA
	CHAN	100	3	PUSHYAMI
	KUJA	0	28	ASWIN
	BUDH	317.	22	SATABISA
	GURU	332	3	PURVABORA
	SUKR	254	13	PURVASADA
	SANI	235	42	JYESHTA

PADAM	RULER	PLANET	DEG
2	KUJA	RAHU	350
3	SANI	KETU	170
1	KETH	LAGN	344
4	RAHU	URAN	242
4	GURU	NEPT	253
1	SUKR	PLUT	196
3	BUDH	GULI	4

MIN	STAR	PADAM	RULER
35	REVATHI	2	BUDH
35	HASTHA	4	CHAN
30	UTRABADRA	4	SAŅI
5	MOOLA	1	KETU
25	PURVASADA	1	SUKR
13	SWATHI	3	RAHU
29	ASWINI	2	KETU

PLANETS UNDER RETROGRESSION : PLUT;

BHAVA (DEG:MIN) 1 2 3 4 5

MIDDLE 344:30 13:51 43:11 72:32 103:11 START 329:10 359:10 28:31 57:51 87:51

6 7 8 9 10 11 12

133:51 164:30 193:51 223:11 252:32 283:11 313:51

118:31 149:10 179:10 208:31 237:51 267:51 298:31

RESIDENTIAL SURY CHAN KUJA BUDH GURU SUKR

STRENGTH .046 .794 .088 .770 .188 .890

SANI RAHU KETU LAGN URAN NEPT PLUT GULI

.147 .586 .586 1.000 .288 .942 .838 .362

LAGN	KUJA		
GURU	GULI		
RAHU			
BUDH			CHAN
SURY		RASI	
NEPT			
SUKR	SANI	PLUT	KETU
URAN			

BUDH	KUJA URAN	GULI	
SANI PLUT			GURU
RAHU	NAVAMSA		SUKR
	LAGN	CHAN	SURY

LAGN	KUJA		
GURU	GULI		
RAHU			
SURY			CHAN
BUDH			
	E	HAVA	
NEPT			
SUKR	SANI	PLUT	KETU
URAN			

VIMSOTTARI DASAS : SANI DASA REMAINING AT THE TIME OF BIRTH : 9 YEARS 4 MONTHS 26 DAYS

DASA ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS
BUDH SJUL13	BUD 6DEC98	KET 2DEC99	SUK 20CT 2
KETU 9JUL20	KET 6DEC13	SUK 5FEB15	11JUN15
SUKR 9JUL40	SUK 8NOV23	SUR 8NOV24	CHA 9JUL26
SURY 9JUL46	SUR 270CT40	CHA 26APR41	KUJ 2SEP41
CHAN 9JUL 56	CHA 9MAY47	KUJ 9DEC47	RAH BJUN49
KUJA 9JUL 63	KUJ 6DEC56	RAH 24DEC57	GUR 29NOV58
RAHU 9JUL81	RAH 21MAR66	GUR 15AUG68	SAN 20JUN71

BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS
ON	ON	ON	ON
KUJ 19FEB91	RAH 27DEC93	GUR SJUL96	
SUR SAUG 3	CHA 9JAN 5	KUJ 6JAN 6	RAH 24JUL 8
CHA 12JAN16	KUJ BJUN16	RAH 26JUN17	GUR 2JUN18
KUJ 8SEP27	RAH 8SEP30	GUR 9MAY33	SAN 9JUL36
RAH 27JUL42	GUR 15MAY43	SAN 26APR44	BUD 3MAR45
GUR 90CT50	SAN 9MAY52	BUD 9OCT53	KET 9MAY54
SAN SJAN60	BUD 6JAN61	KET 2JUN61	SUK 3AUG62
BUD 9JAN74	KET 27JAN75	SUK 27JAN78	SUR 21DEC78

BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS	
GUR 300CT10	SAN 9JUL13	
SAN 12JUL19	BUD BJUL20	
BUD 9MAY39	KET 9JUL40	
KET 9JUL45	SUK 9JUL46	
SUK 9JAN56	SUR 9JUL56	
SUR 9DEC62	CHA 9JUL63	
CHA 20JUN80	KUJ 9JUL81	

HOROSCOPE OF TWIN II FEMALE

SAPTHAVARGA:	RASI	HORA	DREKKANA
SURY	MAKARA	SURY	KANYA
CHAN	KATAKA	CHAN	VRICHIKA
KUJA	MESHA	SURY	MESHA
BUDH	KUMBHA	CHAN	MITHUNA
GURU	MEENA.	CHAN	MEENA
SUKR	DHANUS	SURY	MESHA
SANI	VRICHIKA	SURY	KATAKA
RAHU	MEENA	SURY	VRICHIKA
KETU	KANYA	SURY	RISHABA
LAGN	MEENA	CHAN	KATAKA

SAPTAMSA	NAVAMSA	DWADASMASA	THRIMSAMSA	DASAMSA
MAKARA	KANYA	DHANUS	KUJA	MITHUNA
MEENA	THULA	VRICHIKA	BUDH	MITHUNA
MESHA	MESHA	MESHA	KUJA	MESHA
MITHUNA	MEENA	SIMHA	GURU	KATAKA
KANYA	KATAKA	MEENA	SUKR	VRICHIKA
MEENA	SIMHA	RISHABA	GURU :	MESHA
THULA	KUMBHA	KANYA	KUJA	MEENA
MAKARA	MAKARA	VRICHIKA	SANI	RISHABA
KATAKA	KATAKA	RISHABA	SANI	VRICHIKA
DHANUS	VRICHIKA	SIMHA	GURU	MEENA

SARVASHTAGA VARGA CHART:

	MESHA	RISHABH	MITHUNA	KATAKA	SIMHA	KANYA	THULA
SURY	4(0)	5(2)	4(1)	5(5)	4(0)	3(0)	3(0)
CHAN	4(0)	4(0)	5(0)	*2(0)	5(1)	6(0)	3(0)
KUJA	*2(0)	6(4)	3(0)	4(2)	3(1)	2(0)	3(0)
BUDH	5(0)	4(C)	4(0)	4(2)	5(0)	2(0)	6(0)
GURU	6(3)	5(1)	3(0)	4(0)	4(1)	4(0)	6(1)
SUKR	3(0)	2(0)	5(1)	6(2)	5(2)	4(1)	5(1)
SANI	2(0)	3(0)	2(0)	3(0)	4(2)	4(1)	3(1)
SARVA	26(3)	29(7)	2,6(2)	28(11)	30(7)	25(2)	29(3)

VRISCHK	DHANUS	MAKARA	KUMBHA	MEENA	RASI PINDA	GRAHA PINDA	SODYA PINDA
6(6)	5(1)	*5(2)	4(1)	0(0)	126	77	203
2(0)	5(1)	5(1)	4(1)	4(2)	59	37	96
4(2)	4(2)	3(1)	3(0)	2(0)	97	39	136
4(2)	7(2)	5(3)	*6(2)	2(0)	79	59	138
5(1)	3(0)	7(3)	3(0)	*6(2)	95	64	159
4(0)	•5(2)	.4(2)	4(0)	5(1)	88	44	132
•3(0)	3(1)	6(3)	3(1)	3(0)	67	27	94
28(11)	32(9)	35(15)	27(5)	22(5)			

SHADBALAS (RUPAS):
BENEFIC MOON & BENEFIC MERCURY
"MALUES IN BRACKETS APPLY FOR MALEFIC MERCURY)

	STHANA	DIK BALA	CHESTA	NAISARGIK BALA	KALA BALA
SURIY	3.107	.742	.000	1.000	2.278(2.278)
CHAN	3.127	.848	.000	.857	2.531/2.531
KUJA	5.528	.402	.438	.286	1.055(1.055)
BUDH	3.060	.848	.541	.429	3.532(2.745)
GURU	3.567	.929	.801	.571	3.839(3.839)
SUKR	2.992	.008	.544	.714	1.709(1.709)
SANI	2.770	.606	.367	.143	1.552(1.552)
		N. V			

DHRISHT BALA	GRAHA SHADBALA	RELATIVE	ISHTA BALA	KASTHA BALA	NET
026(026)	7.100(7.100)	1.420(1.420)	.422	527	105
035(096)	7.329(7.268)	1.221(1.211)	.749	199	.550
.091(.036)	7.800(7.745)	1.560(1.549)	.535	441	.094
092(092)	8.317(7.530)	1.188(1.076)	.288	623	335
.098(.098)	9.805(9.805)	1.508(1.508)	.504	369	.135
018(031)	5.949(5.936)	1.082(1.079)	.483	510	027
.101(.011)	5.540(5.450)	1.108(1.090)	.542	354	.188

BHAVA	1	2	. 3	4	5
BHAVA DIKBALA	.500	.333	:167	.500	.833
ADHIPATHI BALA	9.805	7.800	5.949	8.317	7.329
	(9.805)	(7.745)	(5.936)	(7.530)	(7.268)
DHRISHTI BALA	.121	.330	.795	1.040	.573
BHAVA BALA(NET)	10.426	8.463	6.911	9.857	8.735
	(10.426)	(8.409)	(6 898)	(9.070)	(8.674)

6	7	8	9	10	11	12
.333	.000	.167	.667	.500	.833	.833
7.100	8.317	5.949	7.800	9.805	5.540	5.540
(7.100)	(7.530)	(5.936)	(7.745)	(9.805)	(5.450)	(5.450)
1.054	1.324	1.040	1.043	.122	.171	085
8.488	9.641	7.156	9.509	10.427	6.544	6.288
(8.488)	(8.854)	(7.143)	(9.455)	(10.427)	(6.454)	(6.198)

The various emission of house matters such as Lagna Bhava, Bhava II-House of Finance etc. depend upon the sublord of the cusps and their Constellation Lords. So Ahtaka Varga leads us no where and leaves us high and dry. Further any system that does not work in the case of twins cannot work in astrology correctly. So it is futile to work out Ashtaka Varga figures and give correct predictions. So in KP system of Astrology erection of Ashtaka Varga Tables etc. is not useful. Only the predictions based on Sublord, Subsublord prove to be correct and accurate even in the case of Twins.

K.P. AND TWIN BIRTHS

One day during lunch time, there was a discussion amongst my colleagues regarding horoscope of TWINS since one of my colleague's wife has delivered twins just a week back. I told them that there should be certain difference between the horoscope of TWINS because of Sub Division of Star as followed in K.P.

A couple of days later, my friend brought a single horoscope cast for the TWINS in the traditional way by his family astrologer. I got a copy of the horoscope for verification since again the discussion amongst ourselves centred round possible differences in the TWIN's horoscope. My friend and another colleague were curious as it was caesarean operation and the Doctors had given the time of birth as 9.20 a.m. and 9.21 a.m.

As a student of K.P., I was also curious and confident that even this minute variation of 1 (one) minute will give different subs. (By using K.P.T.O.H.)

I brought the chart home and cast the horoscopes of both the children as per K.P. System.

CHART NO.1

Rahu 20°41' 22" ASC14"38'36" Jup 2 ⁰ 18'14"	Mars 0°34'34" II18°4'12"	III 16°34'24"	IV 12°39'48"
Mer 17°27'17" XII 9°40'36"	Twin - 1 Time : 9-20 a.n Date : 12th Fel	V 9°21'12" Moon 10°10'20"	
Sun 29°18'36" XI 9021'12"	Place : Bangai Lat : 12° 58' N Long : 77° 38' Ayanamsa : 23	VI 9°40'36" Fortuna 15°30'20"	
Venus 14°18'53" X 12°39'48" Ura2°9'29"	Sat 25°47'38" Nep 25°34'10" IX 16°34'24"	VIII 18° 4'12"	VII 14°38'36" Kethu 20°41'22"

CUSP	STAR LORD	SUB LORD	SUBSUB LORD
1	SAT	RAH	MOON
11	VEN	MAR	MOON
H	MOON	SAT	VEN
IV	RAH	MER	MER
V	SAT	VEN	JUP
VI	KET	SAT	MER
Vii	: MOO	JUP	MER
VIII	RAH	SUN	VEN
IX	SAT	JUP	RAH
X	KET	MER	RAH
XI	SUN	VEN	SAT
XII:	RAH	JUP	VEN

CHART NO. 2

Rahu 20°41'22' ASC 14°57' Jup 2°18'14'	Mars 0° 34'34'	III 16°51'52'	IV 12°53'59*
Mercruy 17°27'17" XII 9°57'21" Sun 29°18'36" XI 9°36'6"	Twin - 2 Time: 9-21 a.m. Date: 12th Feb: Place: Bangalor Lat: 12° 58' N Long: 77° 38' E Ayanamsa: 22°	V 9°36'6" Moon 10°10'20" VI 9057'21" Fortuna 15°52'54"	
Venus 14°18'53' X 12°53'59' Ura 2°9'29'	Saturn 25°47'38" Nep 25°34'10" IX 16°51'52"	VIII 18°20'28"	VII 14° 57' Kethu 20°41'22'

CUSP	STAR LORD	SUB LORD	SUBSUB LORD
Ī	SAT	JUP	JUP
n	VEN	RAH	RAH
111	MOO	SAT	SUN
١٧	RAH	MER	KET
V	SAT	VEN	SAT
M	KET	SAT	MER
VII	MOO	UP	VEN
VIII	RAH	MOO	RAH
IX	SAT	MER	MER
X	KET	MER	JUP
XI	SUN	VEN	MER
XII	RAH	JUP	MOON

Balance of Vimshottari Dasa in both Chart No.1 & Chart No.2 SATURN DASA.

9 Yrs 3 months 4 days

Inthe chart, it may be noted that the ascendant Sub-Lord of TWIN 1 (One) is RAHU and Lagna Sub Lord of TWIN 2 (Two) is JUPITER. Almost all other planetary positions remain the same. The TWIN 1 (One) is a male child which is confirmed by RAHU's Position. RAHU being ascendant Sub Lord is deposited in Venus Sub Which is posited in Dhanus a masculine sign.

TWIN 2 (Two) is a female child which can be seen by the disposition of Sub Lord of Lagna JUPITER. JUPITER is in RAHU'S Sub which is deposited in feminine sign Meena.

The above incident of TWIN births concurs with the statement, of our Editor, in Article K.P. SUB LORDS & TWIN BIRTHS - Jan to Mar 87 issue-:... the Sub Lord alone can give decision in the matter of TWINS also and this introduction of 'SUB' by my father prof.: K.S. KRISHNAMURTHI is "Stupendous" addition made in the prediction of astrology".

I conclude this article with PRANAMS to our Guruji who has propounded such a sound theory in the Astrology.

ASTROLOGY FOR BEGINNERS

HOROSCOPE OF TWIN A (TRADITIONAL)

DATE OF BIRTH: 24-7-1961 MONDAY

TIME: 11:30 HRS (IST) PLACE: DINDIGUL

AYANAMSA: 23:19:3 SUNRISE/SET: 5:51/18:21 (LMT)

SIDEREAL TIME: 7:18:53 HRS

NAKSHATRA: JYESHTA 1 PADA

THITHI: (SUKLA) EKADASI YOGA: BRAHMA

NIRAYANA LONGITUDES:	PLANET	DEG	MIN	STAR
	SURY	97	47	PUSHYAMI.
	CHAN	228	25	JYESHTA
	KUJA	141	52	PUBBA
	BUDH	78	26	ARUDRA
	GURU	279	4	UTRASADA
	SUKR	55	4	MRIGASIRA
	SANI	272	51	UTRASADA

PADAM	RULER	PLANET	DEG
2	SANI	RAHU	125
1	BUDH	KETU	305
3	SUKR	LAGN	176
4	RAHU	URAN	121
4	SURY	NEPT	195
1	KUJA	PLUT	133
2	SURY	GULI	221

MIN	STAR	PADAM	RULER
12	МАКНА	2	KETU
12	DHANISTA	4	KUJA
30	CHITRA	1	KUJA
13	MAKHA	1	KETU
14	SWATHI	3	RAHU
16	MAKHA	4	KETU
37	ANURADHA	3	SANI

PLANETS UNDER RETROGRESSION : GURU; SANY;

BHAVA (DEG:MIN) 1 2 3 4 5

MIDDLE 176:30 205:57 235:25 264:53 295:25 START 161:14 191:14 220:41 250: 9 280: 9

6 7 8 9 10 11 12

325:57 356:30 25:57 55:25 84:53 115:25 145:57

310:41 341:14 11:14 40:41 .70: 9 100: 9 130:41

RESIDENTIAL SURY CHAN KUJA BUDH GURU SUKR

STRENGTH 155 .524 .732 .562 .071 .976

SANI RAHU KETU LAGN URAN NEPT PLUT GULI

.478 .359 .359 1.000 .620 .272 .169 .063

			SUKR	BUDH
KETU			SURY	
GURU SANI		RA	SI	URAN KUJA PLUT RAHU
	CHAN		NEPT	LAGN

BUDH GURU	URAN	RAHU	BELLE I LEGIS HELLE CAMPUT DEPRESANTA
NEPT			
SANi	N A	VAMSA	SUKR
CHAN	KETU	GULI	SURY

		SUKR	SURY
•		BHAVA	RAHU URAN
KETU			KUJA PLUT
GURU SANI	CHAN	NEPT	LAGN

VIMSOTTARI DASAS : BUDH DASA REMAINING AT THE TIME OF BIRTH : 14 YEARS 9 MONTHS 5 DAYS

DASA ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS
ON	ON	ON	ON
BUD 29APR76	BUD 26SEP61	KET 23SEP62	SUK 23JUL65
KETU 29APR83	KET 26SEP76	SUK 26NOV77	SUR 2APR78
SUKR29APR3	SUK 30AUG86	SUR 30AUG87	CHA 29APR89
SURY29APR 9	SUR 17AUG 3	CHA 16FEB 4	KUJ 23JUN 4
CHA 29APR19	CHA 27FEB10	KUJ 29SEP10	RAH 30MAR12
KUJA 29APR26	KUJ 26SEP19	RAH 140CT20	GUR 20SEP21
RAH 29APR44	RAH 11JAN29	GUR 5JUN31	SAN 11APR34
GUR 29APR60	GUR 17JUN46	SAN 30DEC48	BUD 5APR51

BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS
ON	ON	ON	ON
SUR 30MAY66	CHA 300CT67	KUJ 260CT68	RAH 14MAY71
CHA 2NOV78	KUJ 30MAR79	RAH 17APR80	GUR 23MAR81
KUJ 29JUN90	RAH 29JUN93	GUR 27FEB96	SAN 29APR99
RAH 17MAY 5	GUR 5MAR 6	SAN 16FEB 7	BUD 23DEC 7
GUR 30JUL13	SAN 27FEB15	BUD 30JUL16	KET 27FEB17
SAN 300CT22	BUD 270CT23	KET 23MAR24	SUK 23MAY25
BUD 300CT36	KET 17NOV37	SUK 17NOV40"	SUR 110CT41
KET 11MAR52	SUK 11NOV54	SUR 30AUG55	CHA 30DEC56

BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS	
ON	ON	
GUR 20AUG73	SAN 29APR76	
SAN 2MAY82	BUD 29APR83	
BUD 23FEB 2	KET 29APR 3	
KET 29APR 8	SUK 29APR 9	
SUK 300CT18	SUR 29APR19	
SUR 29SEP25	CHA 29APR26	
CHA 11APR43	PR43 KUJ 29APR44	
KUJ 5DEC57	RAH 29APR60	

HOROSCOPE OF TWIN A

SAPTHAVARGA:	RASI	HORA	DREKKANA
SURY	KATAKA	CHAN	KATAKA
CHAN	VRICHIKA	SURY	MEENA
KUJA	SIMHA	CHAN	MESHA
BUDH	MITHUNA	CHAN	THULA
GUŘU	MAKARA	CHAN	MAKARA
SUKR	RISHABA	SURY	MAKARA
SANI	MAKARA	CHAN	MAKARA
RAHU	SIMHA	SURY	SIMHA
KETU	KUMBHA	SURY	KUMBHA
LAGN	KANYA	SURY	RISHABA

SAPTAMSA	NAVAMSA	DWADASAMSA	THRIMSAMSA	DASAMSA
KUMBHA	KANYA	THULA	BUDH	RISHBA
KANYA	DHANUS	MITHUNA	GURU	MAKARA
MAKARA	THULA	MESHA	BUDH	MEENA
THULA	MEENA	MAKARA	BUDH	DHANUS
KANYA	MEENA	MESHA	BUDH	DHANUS
MESHA	SIMHA	MEENA	KUJA	KANYA
KATAKA -	MAKARA	KUMBHA	SUKR	KANYA
KANYA	RISHABA	THULA	SANI	KANYA
MEENA	VRICHIKA	MESHA	SANI	MEENA
KANYA	SIMHA	KATAKA	KUJA	MAKARA

SARVASHTAGA VARGA CHART

	MESHA	RISHABH	MITHUNA	KATAKA	SIMHA	KANYA	THULA
SURY	6(3)	4(1)	3(0)	*3(0)	6(5)	4(1)	4(0)
CHAN	5(0)	4(0)	4(1)	3(0)	4(0)	5(0)	3(0)
KWA	5(0)	2(0)	3(1)	2(0)	*3(0)	5(1)	4(2)
BUDH	5(0)	4(2)	*7(4)	3(0)	6(1)	5(0)	3(0)
GURU	3(0)	5(1)	5(0)	5(2)	3(0)	6(2)	5(0)
SUKR	4(0)	*5(1)	4(0)	4(1)	4(0)	5(1)	6(1)
SANI	4(1)	5(3)	4(1)	3(0)	1(0)	2(0)	3(0)
SARVA	32(4)	29(8)	30(7)	23(3)	27(6)	32(5)	28(3)

VRISCHK	DHANUS	MAKARA	KUMBHA	MEENA	RASI PINDA	GRAHA PINDA	SODYA PINDA
6(3)	1(0)	3(0)	5(2)	3(0)	132	62	194
* 5(2)	4(0)	6(2)	3(0)	3(0)	34	45	79
6(4)	3(0)	2(0)	2(0)	2(0)	59	25	84
5(2)	5(0)	2(0)	5(2)	4(1)	112	52	164
3(0)	3(0)	*4(0)	6(1)	8(5)	99	17	116
5(2)	4(0)	4(0)	4(0)	3(0)	42	22	64
4(1)	3(2)	*4(2)	3(0)	3(0)	81	61	142
34(14)	23(2)	25 (4)	28(5)	26(6)			

SHADBALAS (RUPAS):
BENEFIC MOON & BENEFIC MERCURY
(VALUES IN BRACKETS APPLY FOR MALEFIC MERCURY)

	STHANA BALA	DIK BALA	CHESTA	NAISARGIK BALA	KALA BALA
SURY	2.294	.928	.000	1.000	.4.040(4.040)
CHAN	1.961	.797	.000	.857	3.125(3.125)
KUJA	3.070	.683	.316	.286	1.479(1.479)
BUDH	3.925	.455	.534	.429	2.676(2.225)
GURU	1.960	.430	.994	.571	2.738(2.738)
SUKR	2.865	.166	.518	.714	3.838(3.838)
SANI	3.470	.535	.974	.143	1.280(1.280)

**DHRISHTI	GRAHA	RELATIVE	ISHTA	KASTHA	NET
BALA**	SHADBALA	STRENGTH	BALA	BALA	
.173(.173)	8.435(8.435)	1.687(1.687)	.651	290	.361
059(059)	6.681 (6.681)	1.114(1.113)	249	501	251
.290(.136)	6.124(5.971)	1.225(1.194)	205	770	566
.129(.129)	8.148(7.697)	1.164(1.100)	.526	474	.053
.108(306)	6.800(6.386)	1.046(.983)	.150	078	.072
.331(.331)	8.431 (8.431)	1.533(1.533)	.592	394	.198
.133(307)	6.536(6.096)	1.307(1.219)	.761.	103	.658

BHAVA	1	2	3	4	5
BHAVA DIKBALA	1.000	.833	.333	.000	.833
ADHIPATHI BALA	8.148	8.431	6.124	6.800	6.536
	(7.697)	(8.431)	(5.971)	(6.386)	(6.096)
DHRISHTI BALA	1.431	.060	.188	.893	.665
BHAVA BALA (NET)	10.579	9.325	6.646	6.693	8.034
	(10.127)	(9.325)	(6.492)	(7.279)	(7.594)

6	7	8	9	10	11	12
.167	.500	.667	.833	.500	.167	.667
6.536	6.800	6.124	8.431	8.148	6.681	8.435
(6.096)	(6.386)	(5.971)	(8.431)	(7.697)	(6.681)	(8.435)
.371	.140	.392	.877	.518	.893	1.040
7.074	7.440	7.182	10.141	9.166	7.741	10.141
(6.634)	(7.026)	(7.029)	(10.141)	(8.714)	(7.741)	(10.141)

HOROSCOPE OF TWIN B (TRADITIONAL)

DATE OF BIRTH: 24-7-1961 MONDAY

TIME: 12:25 HRS (IST) PLACE: DINDIGUL

AYANAMSA: 23:19:3 SUNRISE/SET: 5:51/18:21 (LMT)

SIDEREAL TIME: 8:14:2 HRS

NAKSHATRA: JYESHTA 1 PADA

THITHI: (SUKLA) EKADASI YOGA: BRAHMA

NIRAYANA LONGITUDES:	PLANET	DEG	MIN	STAR
	SURY	97	49	PUSHYAMI
	CHAN	228	57	JYESHTA
	KUJA	141	53	PUBBA
	BUDH	78	29	ARUDRA
	GURU	279	3	UTRASADA
	SUKR	55	7	MRIGASIRA
	SANI	272	51	UTRASADA

PADAM	RULER	PLANET	DEG
2	SANI	RAHU	125
1	BUDH	KETU	305
3	SUKR	LAGN	190
4	RAHU	URAN	121
4	SURY	NEPT	195
1	KUJA	PLUT	133
2	SURY	GULI	221

MIN	STAR	PADAM	RULER
12	MAKHA	2	KETU
12	DHANISTA	4	KUJA
4	SWATHI	2	RAHU
14	MAKHA	1	KETU
14	SWATH	3	RAHU
16	MAKHA	4	KETU
38	ANURADHA	3	SANI

PLANETS UNDER RETROGRESSION : GURU; SANI;

BHAVA (DEG:MIN) 1 2 3 4 5

MIDDLE 190: 4 219:22 248:39 277:57 308:39

START 174:43 204:43 234: 0 263:18 293:18

6 7 8 9 10 11 12

339:22 10: 4 39:22 68:39 97:57 128:39 159:22

324: 0 354:43 24:43 54: 0 83:18 113:18 144: 0

RESIDENTIAL SURY CHAN KUJA BUDH GURU SUKR

STRENGTH .991 .346 .139 .330 .928 .075

SANI RAHU KETU LAGN URAN NEPT PLUT GULI

.651 .775 .775 1.000 .516 .647 .699 .844

		SUKR	BUDH
KETU			SURY
GURU SANI	R	ASI	URAN KUJA PLUT RAHU
	CHAN	LAGN NEPT	

BUDH GURU	URAN	RAHU	
NEPT			PLUT
SANI LAGN	NA	VAMSA	SUKR
CHAN	KETU .	KUJA	SURY

				BUDH
KETU				SURY
GURU SANI		ВН	AVA	URAN KUJA PLUT RAHU
	CHAN		LAGN NEPT	

VIMSOTTARI DASAS : BUDH DASA REMAINING AT THE TIME OF BIRTH : 14 YEARS 1 MONTHS 0 DAYS

DASA ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS
ON	ON	ON	ON
BUD 24AUG75	KET 17JAN62	SUK 17NOV64	SUR 23SEP65
KET 24AUG82	KET 20JAN76	SUK 20MAR77	SUR 27JUL77
SUK 24AUG 2	SUK 24DEC85	SUR 24DEC86	CHA 24AUG88
SUR 24AUG 8	SUR 11DEC 2	CHA 11JUN 3	KUJ 170CT 3
CHA 24AUG18	CHA 23JUN 9	KUJ 24JAN10	RAH 24 JUL11
KUJ 24AUG25	KUJ 20JAN19	RAH 7FEB20	GUR 14JAN21
RAH 24AUG43	RAH 5MAY28	GUR 29SEP30	SAN 5AUG33
GUR 24AUG59	GUR 110CT45	SAN 23APR48	BUD 30JUL50

BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS
CHA 21FEB67	KUJ 18FEB68	RAH 8SEP70	GUR 14DEC72
CHA 24FEB78	KUJ 24JUL78	RAH 11AUG79	GUR 17JUL80
KUJ240CT89	RAH 240CT92	GUR 23JUN95	SAN 24AUG98
RAH 11SEP 4	GUR 29JUN 5	SAN 11JUN 6	BUD 17APR 7
GUR 23NOV12	SAN 23JUN14	BUD 23NOV15	KÈT 23JUN16
SAN 21FEB22	BUD 18FEB23	KET 17JUL23	SUK 17SEP24
BUD 21FEB36	KET 11MAR37	SUK 11MAR40	SUR 4FEB41
KET 5JUL51	SUK 5MAR54	SUK 24DEC54	CHA23APR56

BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS
ON	ON
SAN 24AUG75	
SAN 27AUG81	BUD 24AUG82
BUD 23JUN 1	KET 24AUG 2
KET 24AUG 7	SUK 24AUG 8
SUK 21FEB18	SUR 24AUG18
SUR 24JAN25	CHA 24AUG25
CHA 5AUG42	KUJ 24AUG43
KUJ 30MAR57	RAH 24AUG59

HOROSCOPE OF TWIN B

SAPTHAVARGA:	RASI	HORA	DREKKANA
SURY	KATAKA	CHAN	KATAKA
CHAN	VRICHIKA	SURY	MEENA
KWA	SIMHA	CHAN	MESHA
BUDH	MITHUNA	CHAN	THULA
GURU	MAKARA	CHAN	MAKARA
SUKR	RISHABA	SURY	MAKARA
SANI	MAKARA	CHAN	MAKARA
RAHU	SIMHA	SURY	SIMHA
KETU	KUMBHA	SURY	KUMBHA
LAGN	THULA	SURY	KUMBHA

SAPTAMSA	NAVAMSA	DWADASAMSA	THRIMSAMSA	DASAMSA
KUMBHA	KANYA	THULA	BUDH	RISHBA
KANYA	DHANUS	MITHUNA	GURU	MAKARA
MAKARA	THULA	MESHA	BUDH	MEENA
THULA	MEENA	MAKARA	BUDH	DHANUS
KANYA	MEENA	MESHA	BUDH	DHANUS
MESHA	SIMHA	MEENA	KUJA	KANYA
KATAKA	MAKARA	KUMBHA	SUKR	KANYA
KANYA	RISHABA	THULA	SANI	KANYA
MEENA	VRICHIKA	MESHA	SANI	MEENA
DHANUS	MAKARA	KUMBHA	GURU	MAKARA

SARVASHTAGA VARGA CHART:

	MESHA	RISHABH	MITHUNA	KATAKA	SIMHA	KANYA	THULA
SURY	6(2)	4(0)	2(0)	*3(0)	6(5)	5(1)	4(2)
CHAN	5(0)	4(0)	3(1)	3(0)	5(0)	5(0)	3(1)
KWA	5(0)	2(0)	2(1)	2(0)	*4(0)	4(1)	5(4)
BUDH	4(0)	5(2)	*6(3)	3(0)	7(3)	4(0)	3(0)
GURU	4(2)	4(0)	5(0)	5(1)	4(2)	5(1)	5(0)
SUKR	3(0)	*5(1)	5(0)	3(0)	5(2)	4(0)	6(0)
SANI	4(2)	5(4)	3(1)	3(0)	2(0)	1(0)	4(0)
SARVA	31(6)	29(7)	26(6)	22(1)	33(12)	28(3)	30(7)

VRISCHK	DHANUS	MAKARA	KUMBHA	MEENA	RASI PINDA	GRAHA PINDA	SODYA PINDA
5(2)	1(0)	4(0)	4(2)	4(1)	133	50	183
*4(1)	5(0)	6(2)	2(0)	4(1)	45	40	85
5(3)	4(0)	2(0)	1 (0)	3(1)	77.	20	97
6(3)	4(0)	3(0)	4(1)	5(2)	133	68	201
4(0)	2(Q)	*4(0)	6(1)	8(4)	102	21	123
5(2)	4(1)	4(0)	5(0)	3(0)	55	33	88
3(0)	3(0)	*5(4)	2(0)	4(0)	82	93	175
32(11)	23(1)	28(6)	24(4)	31(9)			

SHADBALAS (RUPAS):
BENEFIC MOON & BENEFIC MERCURY
(VALUES IN BRACKETS APPLY FOR MALEFIC MERCURY)

	STHANA	DIK BALA	CHESTA	NAISARGIK BALA	KALA BALA
SURIY	2.793	.999	.000	1.000 -	4.094(4.094)
CHAN	2.214	.728	.000	.857	3.075(3.075)
KUJA	3.320	.756	.316	.286	1.419(1.419)
BUDH	3.176	.380	.533	.429	3.679(3.222)
GURU	2.460	.506	.994	.571	2.797(2.797)
SUKR	3.115	.238	.518	.714	2.897(2.897)
SANI	3.970	.460	.974	.143	1,220(1.220)

**DHRISHT	GRAHA SHADBALA	RELATIVE STRENGTH	ISHTA BALA	KASTHA BALA	NET
.175(.175)	9.061 (9.061)	1.812(1.812)	.651	291	.360
051(059)	6.822(6.815)	1.137(1.136)	254	497	243
.291(.137)	6.388(6.234)	1.278(1.247)	205	770	566
.130(.130)	8.326(7.869)	1.189(1.124)	.526	474	.052
.107(308)	7.435(7.020)	1.444(1.080)	.150	076	.073
.332(.332)	7.814(7.814)	1.421(1.421)	.592	395	.197
.132(308)	6.900(6.459)	1.380(1.292)	.761	103	.658

BHAVA	1	2	3	4	5
BHAVA DIKBALA	1.000	.167	.667	.000	.333
ADHIPATHI BALA	7.814	6.388	7.435	6.900	6.900
37.	(7.814)	(6.234)	(7.020)	(6. 459)	(6.459)
DHRISHTI BALA	.419	.017	.672	.730	.486
BHAVA BALA (NET)	9.223	6.571	8.774	7.630	7.719
	(9.233)	(6.418)	(8.359)	(7.190)	(7.278)

12	11	10	9	8	7	6
.833	.833	.000	.333	.667	.500	.667
8.326	9.061	6.822	8.326	7.814	6.388	7.435
(7.869)	(9.061)	(6.815)	(7.869)	(7.814)	(6.234)	(7.020)
1.593	947	· , ,899	.640	.979	.406	.146
10.753	10.842	7.721	9.299	9.459	7.294	8.248
(10.296)	(10.842)	(7.713)	(8.842)	(9.459)	(7.141)	(7.833)

TWIN A (KP)

PLACE OF BIRTH: DINDIGUL JUL 24,1961

TIME OF BIRTH: 11.30 A.M DAY: MONDAY

CUSP POSITION

SL	CUSP	NIRAYANA	RASI	STAR	SUB
NO		DEG-MIN-SEC	LORD	LORD	LORD
1	ı	176-36-5	MERCURY	MARS	JUPITER
2	11	206-43-2	VENUS	JUPITER	VENUS
3	111	235-58-4	MARS	MERCURY	RAHU
4	IV	264-59-17	JUPITER	VENUS	MERCURY
5	٧	295- 1-39	SATURN	MARS	RAHU
6	И	326- 9-35	SATURN	JUPITER	KETHU
7	ΝI	356-36- 5	JUPITER	MERCURY	JUPITER
8	MII	26-43- 2	MARS	SUN	SUN
9	IX	55-58- 4	VENUS	MARS	RAHU
10	х	8459-17	MERCURY	JUPITER	MERCURY
11	XI	115- 1-39	MOON	MERCURY	RAHU
12	XII	146- 9-35	SUN	VENUS	KETHU

PLANET POSITION

SL	CUSP	NIRAYANA	RASI	STAR	SUB
NO		DEG-MIN-SEC	LORD	LORD	LORD
1	SUN	97-53-27	MOON	SATURN	KETHU
2	MOON .	228-32-50	MARS	MERCURY	MERCURY
3	MARS .	141-58- 5	SUN	VENUS	SATURN
4	MERCURY	78-32-22	MERCURY	RAHU	MOON
5	JUPITER	279- 7-20	SATURN	SUN	VENUS
6	VENUS	55-10-49	VENUS	MARS	RAHU
7	SATURN	273- 3-28	SATURN	SUN	SATURN
8	RAHU	125-18-46	SUN	KETHU	MARS
9	KETHU	305-18-46	SATURN	MARS	SUN
10	URANUS	121-18-54	SUN	KETHU	VENUS
11	NEPTUNE	195-16-55	VENUS	RAHU	VENUS
12	PLUTO	133-21-55	SUN	VENUS	VENUS

RASI CHART 60 X 24-59-17 VIII 26-43- 2 IX 25-58-4 VII 26-36- 5 MER 18-32-22 VEN 25-10-49 90 330 XI 25- 1-39 VI 26- 9-35 SUN 7-53-27 KET 5-18-46 FOR 7-15-27 120 300 A XII 26-9-35 V 25-1-39 MAR 21-58-5 JUP 9-7-20 R URA 1-18-54 SAT 3-3-28 R PLU 13-21-55 RAH 5-18-46 150 270 126-36-5 11 26-43-2 III 25-58-4 IV 24-59-17 NEP 15-16-55 MOON 18-32-50

210

240

180

TABLE OF SIGNIFICATOR

CUSP	PLANET IN THE STAR OF OCCUPANTS-CUSP	OCCUPANTS OF CUSP	PLANET IN THE STAR OF OWNER OF CUSP	OWNER OF
1		NEPTUNE	MOON	MERCURY
2		MOON	MARS PLUTO	VENUS
3			VENUS KETHU	MARS
4	SUN	JUPITER		JUPITER
5	RAHU URANUS	KETHU	SUN	SATURN
6			SUN	SATURN
7				JUPITER
8	MARS PLUTO	VENUS	VENUS	MARS
9	MOON	MERCURY	MARS	VENUS
10	JUPITER SATURN	SUN	MOON	MERCURY
11	MERCURY VENUS KETHU NEPTUNE	MARS URANUS PLUTO RAHU		MOON
12			JUPITER	SUN

NAKSHATRA: JYESHTA VIMSOTTARI DASA BUKTHI

SL	DASA	BUKTHI	FROM	то
NO				
	MERCURY DAS	SA BALANCE:	24/7/1961	2/3/1976
1	KETHU	KETHU	2/3/1976	29/7/1976
2	KETHU	VENUS	29/7/1976	29/9/1977
3	KETHU	SAN	29/9/1977	5/2/1978
4	KETHU	MOON	5/2/1978	5/9/1978
5	KETHU	MARS	5/9/1978	2/2/1979
6	KETHU	RAHU	2/2/1979	20/2/1980
7	KETHU	JUPITER	20/2/1980	26/1/1981
8	KETHU	SATURN	26/1/1981	5/3/1982
9	KETHU	MERCURY	5/3/1982	2/3/1983
10	VENUS	VENUS	2/3/1983	2/7/1986
11	VENUS	SUN	2/7/1986	2/7/1987
12	VENUS	MOON	2/7/1987	2/3/1989
13	VENUS	MARS	2/3/1989	2/5/1990
14	VENUS	RAHU	2/5/1990	2/5/1993
15	VENUS	JUPITER	2/5/1993	2/1/1996
16	VENUS	SATURN	2/1/1996	2/3/1999
17	VENUS	MERCURY	2/3/1999	2/1/2002
18	VENUS	KETHU	2/1/2002	2/3/2003
19	SUN	SUN	2/3/2003	20/6/2003
20	SUN	MOON	20/6/2003	20/12/2003
21	SUN	MARS	20/12/2003	26/4/2004

TWIN B (KP)

PLACE OF BIRTH: DINDIGUL JUL 24,1961
TIME OF BIRTH: 12:25 P.M DAY: MONDAY

CUSP POSITION

SL	CUSP	NIRAYANA	RASI	STAR	SUB
NO		DEG-MIN-SEC	LORD	LORD	LORD
1	ı	190-10-22	VENUS	RAHU	JUPITER
2	П	219-41-56	MARS	SATURN	VENUS
3	118	248-36-58	JUPITER	KETHU	JUPITER
4	IV	278-3-48	SATURN	SUN	VENUS
5	v	308-58-11	SATURN	RAHU .	JUPITER
6	И	340-25-12	JUPITER	SATURN	SUN
7	MI	10-10-22	MARS	KETHU	SATURN
8	VIII	39-41-56	VENUS	SUN	VENUS
9	IX	68-36-58	MERCURY	RAHU	RAHU
10	x	98-3-48	MOON	SATURN	KETHU
11	×	128-58-11	SUN	KETHU	JUPITER
12	ΧI	160-25-12	MERCURY	, WOON	MOON

PLANET POSITION

SL	CUSP	NIRAYANA	RASI	STAR	SUB
NO		DEG-MIN-SEC	LORD	LORD	LORD
1	SUN	97-55-37	MOON	SATURN	KETHU
2	MOON	229-4-28	MARS	MERCURY	KETHU
3	MARS	141-59-27	SUN	VENUS	SATURN
4	MERCURY	78-35-23	MERCURY	RAHU	MOON
5	JUPITER	279- 7- 3	SATURN	SUN	VENUS
6	VENUS	55-13-18	VENUS	MARS	RAHU
7	SATURN	273- 3-18	SATURN	SUN	SATURN
8	RAHU	125-18-39	SUN	KETHU	MARS
9	KETHU	305-18-39	SATURN	MARS	SUN
0	URANUS	121-19- 1	SUN	KETHU	VENUS
1	NEPTUNE	195-16-55	VENUS	RAHU	VENUS
2	PLUTO	133-21-59	SUN	VENUS	VENUS

RASI CHART 60 VI 10-25-12 VII 10-10-22 VIII 9-41-56 IX 8-36-58 VEN 25-13-18 MER 18-35-23 330 90 V 8-58-11 X 8-3-48 KET 5-18-39 SUN 7-55-37 FOR 21-19-13 120 300 B IV 8-3-48 XI 8-58-11 JUP 9-7-3 R MAR 21-59-27 SAT 3-3-18 R URA 1-19-1 PLU 13-21-59 RAH 5-18-39 270 150 III 8-36-58 II 9-41-56 110-10-22 XII 10-25-12 MOO 19-4-28 NEP 15-16-55 .

210

180

240

TABLE OF SIGNIFICATOR

CUSP	PLANET IN THE	OCCUPANTS	PLANET IN THE	OWNER OF
	STAR OF	OF CUSP	STAR OF	CUSP
	OCCUPANTS-CUSP		OWNER OF	1
			CUSP	1
1		NEPTUNE	MARS	VENUS
			PLUTO	
2		MOON	VENUS	MARS
			KETHU	
3	SUN	SATURN		JUPITER
4	RAHU URANUS	JUPITER	SUN	SATURN
		SATURN	3	
5			SUN	SATURN
6				JUPITER
7			VENUS	MARS
			KETHU	
8	MARS ·	VENUS	MARS PLUTO	VENUS
	PLUTO			
9	MOON JUPITER	SUN	MOON	MERCURY
	SATURN	MERCURY		
10	MERCURY	URANUS		MOON
	NEPTUNE	RAHU		
11	VENUS KETHU	MARS	JUPITER	SUN
		PLUTO	SATURN	
12		-	MOON	MERCURY

NAKSHATRA: JYESHTA VIMSOTTARI DASA BUKTHI

SL	DASA	виктні	FROM	то
NO				
	MERCURY D	MERCURY DASA BALANCE:		30/6/1975
1	KETHU	KETHU	30/6/1975	27/11/1975
2	KETHU	VENUS	27/11/1975	27/1/1977
3	KETHU	SUN	27/1/1977	3/6/1977
4	KETHU	MOON	3/6/1977	3/1/1978
5	KETHU	MARS	3/1/1978	30/5/1978
6	KETHU	RAHU	30/5/1978	18/6/1979
7	KETHU	JUPITER	18/6/1979	24/5/1980
8	KETHU	SATURN	24/5/1980	3/7/1981
9	KETHU	MERCURY	3/7/1981	30/6/1982
10	VENUS	VENUS	30/6/1982	30/10/1985
11	VENUS	SUN	30/10/1985	30/10/1986
12 .	VENUS	MOON	30/10/1986	30/6/1988
13	VENUS	MARS	30/6/1988	30/8/1989
14	VENUS	RAHU	30/8/1989	30/8/1992
15	VENUS	JUPITER	30/8/1992	30/4/1995
16	VENUS	SATURN	30/4/1995	30/6/1998
17	VENUS	MERCURY	30/6/1998	30/4/2001
18	VENUS	KETHU	30/4/2001	30/6/2002
19	SUN	SUN	30/6/2002	18/10/2002
20	SUN	MOON	18/10/2002	18/4/2003
21	SUN	MARS	18/4/2003	24/8/2003

HOROSCOPE OF TWIN X (TRADITIONAL)

DATE OF BIRTH: 2-2-1973 FRIDAY

TIME: 16: 4 HRS (IST) PLACE: KOTTAYAM

AYANAMSA: 23:29:8 SUNRISE/SET: 6:25/18: 1 (LMT)

SIDEREAL TIME: 0:30: 1 HRS

NAKSHATRA: UTRASADA 4 PADA

THITHI: (KRISHNA) AMAVASYA YOGA: SIDDHI

NIRAYANA LONGITUDES:	PLANET	DEG	MIN	STAR
	SURY	289	58	SHRAVANA
	CHAN	278	55	UTRASADA
	KUJA	239	42	JYESHTA
	BUDH	293	18	SHRAVANA
5 10	GURU	271	52	UTRASADA
	SUKR	273	35	UTRASADA
	SANI	50	14	ROHINI

PADAM	RULER	PLANET	DEG
3	CHAN	RAHU	262
4	SURY	KETU	82
4	BUDH	LAGN	77
4	CHAN	URAN	179
2	SURY	NEPT	223
3	SURY	PLUT	160
. 4	CHAN	GULI	323

MIN	STAR	PADAM	RULER
2	PURVASADA	3	SUKR
2	PUNARVAS	1	GURU
12	ARUDRA	4	RAHU
32	CHITRA	2	KUJA
35	ANURADHA	4	SANI
42	HASTHA	1	CHAN
23	PURVABORA	2	GURU

PLANETS UNDER RETROGRESSION : SANI; URAN; PLUT;

5 4 2 BHAVA (DEG:MIN) 1 MIDDLE 77:12 106:21 135:31 164:41 195:31 START 61:47 91:47 120:56 150: 6 180: 6 12 11 10 9 8 7 6 15:31 46:21 257:12 286:21 315:31 344:41 226:21 30:56 330: 6 0: 6 241:47 271:47 300:56 210:56

 RESIDENTIAL SURY
 CHAN
 KUJA
 BUDH
 GURU
 SUKR

 STRENGTH
 .753
 .489
 .135
 .524
 .006
 .124

 SANI
 RAHU
 KETU
 LAGN
 URAN
 NEPT
 PLUT
 GULI

 .749
 .668
 .668
 1.000
 .037
 .821
 .727
 .460

			SANI	KETU
GULI		*		
BUDH SURY GURU CHAN SUKR		R A	SI	
RAHU	KUJA			URAN

LAGN CHAN KUJA	KETU	GULI	SURY
SUKR			BUDH
GURU	N A	VAMSA	SUKR
	NEPT	RAHU	URAN

			SANI	KETU LAGN
GULI				
BUDH SURY GURU CHAN SUKR		ВН	A V A	
RAHU	KUJA NEPT			URAN

VIMSOTTARI DASAS : SURY DASA REMAINING AT THE TIME OF BIRTH : 0 YEARS 5 MONTHS 25 DAYS

DASA ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS
OH	ON	ON	ON 2
SURY 28JUL78	SUK 28JUL73		
CHAN 28JUL83	CHA 28MAYY4 A	KUJ 280EC74	RAH 27JAN76
KUJA 28JUNDU	KUJ 25DEC83	RAH 12JAN85	GUR 19DEC85
RAHU 28JUBAS	RAH 9APR93	GUR 3SEP95	SAN 9JUL98
GURU 28JUL24	GUR 15SEP10	SAN 28MAR13	BUD 3JUL15
SANI 28JUL43	SAN 1AUG27	BUD 9APR30	KET 19MAY31
BUDH 28JUL60	BUD 25DEC45	KET 22DEC46	SUK 220CT49
KETU 28JUL67	KET 25DEC60	SUK 22FEB62	SUR 1JUL62

BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS
ON	ON	ON	ON
GUR 280CT77	SAN 28MAY79	BUD 280CT80	KET 28MAY81
SAN 28JAN87	BUD 25JAN88	KET 21JUN88	SUK 22AUG89
BUD 28JAN 1	KET 14FEB 2	SUK 14FEB 5	SUR 9JAN6
KET 9JUN16	SUK 8FEB19	SUR 27NOV19	CHA 28MAR21
SUK 19JUL34	SUR 1JUL35	CHA 1FEB37	KUJ 9MAR38
SUR 28AUG50	CHA 28JAN52	KUJ 25JAN53	RAH 12AUG55
CHA 1FEB63	KUJ 27JUN63	RAH 15JUL64	GUR 21JUN65

BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS
ON	ON
•	
SUK 28JAN83	SUR 28JUL83
SUR 28DEC89	CHA 28JUL90
CHA 9JUL 7	KUJ 28JUL 8
KUJ 3MAR22	RAH 28JUL24
RAH 15JAN41	GUR 28JUL43
GUR 18NOV57	SAN 28JUL60
SAN 1AUG66	BUD 28JUL67

HOROSCOPE OF TWIN X

SAPTHAVARGA:	RASI	HORA	DREKKANA
SURY	MAKARA	SURY	RISHABA
CHAN	MAKARA	CHAN	MAKARA
KUJA	VRICHIKA	SURY	KATAKA
BUDH	MAKARA	SURY	KANYA
GURU	MAKARA	CHAN	MAKARA
SUKR	MAKARA	CHAN	MAKARA
SANI	RISHABA	SURY	MAKARA
RAHU	DHANUS	CHAN	SIMHA
KETU	MITHUNA	CHAN	KUMBA
LAGN	MITHUNA	CHAN	THULA

SAPTAMSA	NAVAMSA	DWADASAMSA	THRIMSAMSA	DASAMSA
VRICHIKA	MITHUNA	SIMHA	GURU	MEENA
KANYA	MEENA	MESHA	BUDH	VRICHIKA
VRICHIKA	MEENA	THULA	KUJA	MESHA
DHANUS	KATAKA	THULA	SANI	MESHA
KATAKA	MAKARA	MAKARA	SUKR	KANYA
KATAKA	KUMBHA	KUMBHA	SUKR	THULA
MEENA	KATAKA	MAKARA	SANI	KATAKA
RISHABA	THULA	SIMHA	BUDH	KATAKA
VIRICHIKA	MESHA	KUMBHA	BUDH	MAKARA
THULA	MEENA	DHANUS	GURU	VRICHIKA

SARVASHTAGA VARGA CHART:

	MESHA	RISHABH	MITHUNA	KATAKA	SIMHA	KANYA	THULA
SURY	2(0)	5(3)	6(0)	3(0)	4(2)	5(0)	3(0)
CHAN	5(3)	2(0)	2(1)	7(1)	5(3)	3(1)	6(6)
KWA	1(0)	4(3)	7(5)	0(0)	4(3)	1(0)	2(0)
BUDH	3(0)	5(1)	7(1)	2(0)	5(2)	5(1)	2(0)
GURU	5(0)	4(1)	4(0)	5(2)	3(1)	7(4)	6(1)
SUKR	4(0)	4(0)	2(0)	3(0)	6(3)	7(3)	4(2)
SANI	3(0)	*1(0)	5(3)	2(0)	4(1)	4(3)	4(3)
SARVA	23(3)	25(8)	33(10)	22(3)	31(15)	32(12)	27(12

VRISCHK	DHANUS	MAKARA	KUMBHA	MEENA	.RASI PINDA	GRAHA PINDA	SODYA PINDA
7(4)	4(1)	*2(0)	3(0)	4(1)	103	47	150
6(0)	2(0)	*4(2)	0(0)	7(1)	132	64	196
*8(8)	4(3)	1(0)	2(0)	5(3)	227	79	306
8(6)	5(0)	*4(0)	4(2)	4(0)	113	53	166
7(4)	2(0)	*3(0)	7(3)	3(0)	120	37	157
5(2)	3(0)	*5(1)	4(1)	5(2)	115	48	163
6(4)	3(0)	2(1)	1(0)	4(2)	131	64	195
47(28)	23(4)	21(4)	21(6)	32(9)			

SHADBALAS (RUPAS):
BENEFIC MOON & BENEFIC MERCURY
(VALUES IN BRACKETS APPLY FOR MALEFIC MERCURY)

	STHANA BALA	DIK BALA	CHESTA BALA	NAISARGIK BALA	KALA BALA
SURIY	2.930	.696	.000	1.000	1.051(1.051)
CHAN	2.554	.365	.000	.857	2.306(2.306)
KWA	3.801	.417	.361	.286	.880(.880)
BUDH	1.756	.201	.056	.429	3.058(2.180)
GURU	1.299	.082	.110	.571	2.689(2.689)
SUKR	2.349	.395	.170	.714	2.441(2.441)
SANI	2.168	.150	.683	.143	1.430(1.430)

DHRISH BALA	T] GRAHA SHADBALA	RELATIVE	ISHTA BALA	KASTHA BALA	NET
168(168)	5.510(5.510)	1.102(1.102)			
168(168)	12 150	1 14 15 14 15 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16	.366	581	215
- S	5.914(5.914)	.986(.986)	.150	771	621
230(230)	5.515(5.515)	1.103(1.103)	.494	455	039
168(168)	5.331(4.454)	.762(.636)	.126	820	694
168(168)	4.583(4.583)	.705(.705)	.044	935	891
168(168)	5.902(5.902)	1.073(1.073)	.302	620	318
.012(275)	4.562(4.299)	.912(.860)	.339	514	175

BHAVA	1	2	3	4	5
BHAVA DIKBALA	1.000	.667	7.167	.500	.333
ADHIPATHI BALA	5,331	5.914	5.510	5.331	5.902
	(4.454)	(5.914)	(5.510)	(4.454)	(5.902)
DHRISHTI BALA	.432	1.147	.796	1.150	.349
BHAVA BALA (NET)	6.763	7.728	6.472	6.981	6.584
	(5.886)	(7.728)	(6.472)	(6.104)	(6.584)

6	7	8	9	10	11.	12
.B33	.500	.333	.333	.000	.833	.667
5,515	4.583	4.562	4.562	4,583	5.515	5.902
(5.515)	(4.583)	(4.29 9)	(4.299)	(4.583)	(5.515)	(5.902)
167	194	168	076	195	1.017	1.023
6.181	4.889	4./27	4.819	4.777	7.366	7.591
(6.181)	(4.889)	(4.465)	(4.556)	(4.777)	(7.366)	(7.591)

HOROSCOPE OF TWIN Y (TRADITIONAL)

DATE OF BIRTH: 2-2-1973 FRIDAY

TIME: 16:10 HRS (IST) PLACE: KOTTAYAM

AYANAMSA: 23:29:8 SUNRIŞE/SET: 6:25/18: 1 (LMT)

SIDEREAL TIME: 0:36: 2 HRS

NAKSHATRA: UTRASADA 4 PADA

THITHI: (KRISHNA) AMAVASYA YOGA: SIDDHI

NIRAYANA LONGITUDES:	PLANET	DEG	MIN	STAR
	SURY	289	58	SHRAVANA
	CHAN	278	58	UTRASADA
	KUJA	239	42	JYESHTA
	BUDH	293	18	SHRAVANA
	GURU	271	52	UTRASADA
	SUKR	273	35	UTRASADA
	SANI	50	14	ROHINI

PADAM	RULER	PLANET	DEG
3	CHAN	RAHU	262
4	SURY	KETU	82
4	BUDH	LAGN	78
4	CHAN	URAN	179
2	SURY	NEPT	223
3	SURY	PLUT	160
4	CHAN	GULI	323

MIN	STAR	PADAM	RULER
2	PURVADADA	3	SUKR
2	PUNARVAS	1	GURU
34	ARUDRA	4	RAHU
32	CHITRA	2	KUJA
35	ANURADHA	4	SANI
42	HASTHA	1	CHAN
23	PURVABDRA	2	GURU

PLANETS UNDER RETROGRESSION : SANI; URAN; PLUT;

BHAVA	(DEG:MI	N) .1	2	3	4	5
	MIDDLE	78:34	4 107:49	137: 4	166:19	197: 4
	START	63:11	93:11	122:26	151:41	181:41
6	7	8	9	10 .	11	12
227:49	258:34	287:49	317: 4	346:19	17: 4	47:49
212:26	243:11	273:11	302:26	331:41	1:41	32:26
RESID	ENTIAL S	SURY C	HAN KU	JA BU	DH GUR	U SUKR
STREM	IGTH .	.853 .3	395 .22	7 .62	5 .090	.027
SANI	RAHU	KETU L	AGN UR	AN NE	PT PLU	T GULI
.843	.763	.763 1	.000 .14	0 .72	.616	.567

	77. 18—4.		SANI	KETU
GULI		•		9
BUDH SURY GURU CHAN SUKR		R A	SI	
RAHU	KUJA NEPT			URAN

LAGN CHAN KUJA	KETU	GULI	SURY
SUKR			BUDH
GURU	N A	VAMSA	
•	NEPT	RAHU	URAN

			SANI	KETU
GULI				
BUDH SURY SUKR CHAN		ВН	AVA	
GURU RAHU	KUJA NEPT			URAN PLUT

VIMSOTTARI DASAS : SURY DASA REMAINING AT THE TIME OF BIRTH : 0 YEARS 5 MONTHS 15 DAYS

DASA ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS
ON	ON	ON	ON
SUR 18JUL73	SUK 18JUL73		
CHA 18JUL83	CHA 18MAY74	KUJ 18DEC74	RAH 17JUN6
KUJ 18JUL90	KUJ 15DEC83	RAH 2JAN85	GU 9DEC85
RAH 18JUL 8	RAH30MAR93	GUR24AUG95	SAN 29JUN98
GUR 18JUL24	GUR 5SEP10	SAN18MAR13	BUD 23JUN15
SAN 18JUL43	SAN 21JUL27	BUD30MAR30	KET 9MAY31
BUD 18JUL60	BUD15DEC45	KET 12DEC46	SUK 120CT49
KET 18JUL67	KET 15DEC60	SUK13FEB62	SUR 20JUN62

BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS
ON	ON	ON	ON
GUR180CT77	SAN 18MAY79	BUD 180CT80	KET 18MAY81
SAN 18JAN87	BUD 15JAN88	KET 11JUN88	SUK12AUG89
BUD 18JAN 1	KET 5FEB 2	SUK 5FEB 5	SUR 30DEC 5
KET 30MAY16	SUK30JAN19	SUR17NOV19	CHA18MAR21
SUK 9JUL34	SUR 20JUN35	CHA 21JAN37	KUJ 27FEB38
SUR18AUG50	CHA 18JAN52	KUJ 15JAN53	RAH 2AUG55
CHA 21JAN63	KUJ 17JUN63	RAH 5JUL64	GUR 11JUN65

BHUKTI ENDS	BHUKTI ENDS
ON	ON
SUK 18JAN83	SUR 18JUL83
SUR18DEC89	CHA 18JUL90
CHA 29JUN 7	KUJ 18JUL 8
KUJ 22FEB22	RAH 18JUL24
RAH 5JAN41	GUR 18JUL43
GUR 8NOV57	SAN 18JUL60
SAN 21JUL66	BUD 18JUL67

HOROSCOPE OF TWIN Y

SAPTHAVARGA:	RASI	HORA	DREKKANA
SURY	MAKARJA	SURY	RISHBA
CHAN	MAKARA	CHAN-	MAKARA
KUJA	VRICHIKA	SURÝ	KATAKA
BUDH	MAKARA	SURY	KANYA
GURU	MAKARA	CHAN	MAKARA
SUKR	MAKARA	CHAN	MAKARA .
SANI	RISHABA	SURY	MAKARA
RAHU	DHANUS	CHAN	SIMHA
KETU	MITHUNA	CHAN	KUMBHA
LAGN	MITHUNA	CHAN	THULA

SAPTAMSA	NAVAMSA	DWADASAMSA	THRIMSAMSA	DASAMSA
VRICHIKA	MITHUNA	SIMHA	GURU	MEENA
KANYA	MEENA	MESHA	BUDH	VRICHIKA
VRICHIKA	MEENA	THULA	KUJA	MESHA
DHANUS	KATAKA	THULA	SANI	MESHA
KATAKA	MAKARA	MAKARA	SUKR	KANYA
KATAKA	KUMBHA	KUMBHA	SUKR	THULA
MEENA	KATAKA	MAKARA	SANI	KATAKA
RISHABA	THULA	SIMHA	BUDH	KATAKA
VRICHIKA	MESHA	КИМВНА	BUDH	MAKARA
THULA	MEENA	MAKARA	BUDH	DHANUS

SARVASHTAGA VARGA CHART:

	MESHA	RISHABH	MITHUNA	KATAKA	SIMHA	KANYA	THULA
SURY	2(0)	5(3)	6(0)	3(0)	4(2)	5(0)	3(0)
CHAN	5)3)	2(0)	2(1)	7(1)	5(3)	3(1)	6(6)
KWA	1(0)	4(3)	7(5)	0(0)	4(3)	1(0)	2(0)
BUDH	3(0)	5(1)	7(1)	2(0)	5(2)	5(1)	2(0)
GURU	5(0)	4(1)	4(0)	5(2)	3(1)	7(4)	6(1)
SUKR	4(0)	4(0)	2(0)	3(0)	6(3)	7(3)	4(2)
SANI	3(0)	*1(0)	5(3)	2(0)	4(1)	4(3)	4(3)
SARVA	23(3)	25(8)	33(10)	22(3)	31(15)	32(12)	27(12)

VRISCHI	CDHANUS	MAKARA	KUMBHA	MEENA	RASI PINDA	GRAHA PINDA	SODYA PINDA
7(4)	4(1)	2 (0)	3(0)	4(1)	103	47	150
6(0)	2(0)	*4(2)	0(0)	7(1)	132	64	196
*8(8)	4(3)	1(0)	2(0)	5(3)	227	79	306
8(6)	5(0)	*4(0)	4(2)	4(0)	113	53	166
7(4)	2(0)	*3(0)	7(3)	3(0)	120	37	157
5(2)	3(0)	*5(1)	4(1)	5(2)	115	48	163
6(4)	3(0)	2(1)	1(0)	4(2)	131	64	195
47(28)	23(4)	21(4)	21(6)	32(9)			

SHADBALAS (RUPAS):
MALEFIC MOON & BENEFIC MERCURY
(VALUES IN BRACKETS APPLY FOR MALEFIC MERCURY)

	STHANA	DIK BALA	CHESTA BALA	NAISARGIK BALA	-KALA- BALA
SURY	2.930	.687	.000	1.000	1.042(1.042)
CHAN	2.554	.374	.000	.857	2313(2313)
KWA	3.801	.408	.361	286	.888(.888)
BUDH	1.756	.193	.056	.429	3.058(2.180)
GURU	1.299	.074	.110	.571	2.681(2.681)
SUKR	2.349	.404	.170	.714	2.433(2.433)
SANI	2.168	.157	.683	.143	1.438(1.438)

"DHRISHTI " BALA	GRAHA SHADBALA	RELATIVE	ISHTA	KASTHA BALA	NET
168(168)	5.492(5.492)	1.098(1.098)	.366	581	215
168(168)	5.931(5.931)	.988(.988)	.150	771	622
230(230)	5.514(5.514)	1.103(1.103)	.494	455	.039
168(168)	5.324(4.446)	.761(.635)	.127	820	694
168(168)	4.567(4.567)	.703(.703)	.044	935	891
168(168)	5.903(5.903)	1.073(1.073)	.302	620	318
013(275)	4.577(4.314)	.915(.863)	.339	514	175

BHAVA	1	2	3	4	5
BHAVA DIKBALA	1.000	.667	.167	.500	.333
ADHIPATHI BALA	5.324	5.931	5.492	5.324	5.903
	(4.446)	(5.931)	(5.492)	(4.446)	(5.903)
DHRISHTI BALA	.464	1.171	.770	1.133	.332
BHAVA BALA(NET)	6.787	7.769	6.428	6.957	6.568
	(5.910)	(7.769)	(6.428)	(6.079)	(6.568)

6	7	8	9	10	11	12
.833	.500	.333	.333	.000	.833	.667
5.514	4.567	4.577	4.577	4.567	5.514	5.903
(5.514)	(4.567)	(4.314)	(4.314)	(4.567)	(5.514)	(5.903)
189	191	168	066	239	1.030	.977
6.159	4.876	4.743	4.844	4.806	7.377	7.546
(6.159)	(4:876)	(4.480)	(4.582)	(4.806)	(7.377)	(7.546)

TWIN X (KP)

PLACE OF BIRTH :- KOTTAYAM FEB 2, 1973

TIME OF BIRTH :- 16.04 PM DAY : - FRIDAY

CUSP POSIION

SL. NO	CUSP	NIRAYANA DEG-MIN-SEC	RASI LORD	STAR	SUB
1	1	79-4-58	MERCURY	RAHU	MOON
2	11	105-44-15	MOON	SATURN	JUPITER
3	101	134-54-44	SUN	VENUS	VENUS
4	IV	166-54-33	MERCURY	MOON	SATURN
5	v	. 199-26- 5	VENUS	RAHU	MARS
6	VI	230- 8-15	MARS	MERCURY	VENUS
7	VII	259- 4-58	JUPITER	VENUS	RAHU
8	VIII	285-44-16	SATURN	MOON	SATURN
9	IX	314-54-44	SATURN	RAHU	KETHU
10	х	346-54-33	JUPITER	MERCURY	MERCURY
11	XI .	19-26- 5	MARS	VENUS	RAHU
12	XII	50- 8-15	VENUS	MOON	KETHU

PLANET POSITION

SL NO	PLANET	NIRAYANA DEG-MIN-SEC	RASI LORD	STAR	SUB
1	SUN	290- 4-20	SATURN	MOON	KETHU
2	MOON	279- 1-36	SATURN	SUN	VENUS
3	MARS	239-48-30	MARS	MERCURY	SATURN
4	MERCURY	293-24-20	SATURN	MARS	MARS
5	JUPITER	271-55-15	SATURN	SUN	JUPITER
6	VENUS	273-41-28	SATURN	SUN	SATURN
7	SATURN	50-30-22	VENUS	MOON	VENUS
8	RAHU	262- 8-48	JUPITER	VENUS	SATURN
9	KETHU	82- 8-48	MERCURY	JUPITER	SATURN
10	URANUS	179-35-28	MERCURY	MARS	SATURN
11	NEPTUNE	223-39-12	MARS	SATURN	RAHU
12	PLUTO	160-50- 8	MERCURY	MOON	MOON

RASI CHART 60 X 16-54-33 XI 19-26-5 XII 20- 8-15 SAT 20-30-22 KET 22- 8-48 330 FOR 8-2-14 90 IX 14-54-44 II 15-44-15 300 120 VIII 15-44-16 III 14-54-44 SUN 20-4-20 X MER 23-24-20 VEN 3-41-28 JUP 1-55-15 MOO 9-1-36 270 50 VII 19-4-58 VI 20-8-15 V 19-26-5 IV 16-54-33 RAH 22-8-48 MAR 29-48-30 URA 29-35-28 R NEP 13-39-12 PLU 10-50-8R 240 210 180

TABLE OF SIGNIFICATOR

CUSP	PLANET IN THE	OCCUPANTS	PLANET IN THE	OWNER OF
	STAR OF	OF CUSP	STAR OF	CUSP
	OCCUPANTS-CUSP		OWNER OF	
			CUSP	
1		KETHU	MARS	MERCURY
2			SUN SATURN	MOON
			PLUTO	
3		PLUTO	VENUS JUPITER	SUN
			MOON	
4		URANUS	MARS	MERCURY
5		NEPTUNE	RAHU	VENUS
6	MERCURY	MARS	MERCURY	MARS
	URANUS		URANUS	
7	SUN SATURN	VENUS	KETHU	JUPITER
	RAHU KETHU	JUPITER	-	1
	PLUTO	MOON RAHU		
8	MOON MARS	SUN	NEPTUNE	SATURN
601	JUPITER VENUS	MERCURY		
9			NEPTUNE	SATURN
10			KETHU	JUPITER
11			MERCURY	MARS
			URANUS	
12	NEPTUNE	SATURN	RAHU	VENUS

NAKSHATRA: UTTARASHADHA VIMSOTTARI DASA BUKTHI

SLNO	DASA	BUKTHI	FROM	то	
1	SUN DASA BALANCE :		2/2/1973	10/7/1973	
1	MOON	MOON	10/7/1973	10/5/1974	
2	MOON	MARS	10.5/1974	10/12/1974	
3	MOON	RAHU	10/12/1974	10/6/1976	
4	MOON	JUPITER	10/6/197€	10/10/1977	
5	MOON	SATURN	10/10/1977	10/5/1979	
6	MOON	MERCURY	10/5/1979	10/10/1980	
7	MOON	KETHU	10/10/1980	10/5/1981	
8	MOON	VENUS	10/5/1981	10/1/1983	
9	MOON	SUN	10/1/1983	10/7/1983	
10	MARS	MARS	10/7/1983	7/12/1983	
11	MARS	RAHU	7/12/1983	25/12/1984	
12	MARS	JUPITER	25/12/84	1/12/1985	
13	MARS	SATURN	1/12/1985	10/1/1987	
14	MARS	MERCURY	10/1/1987	7/1/1988	
15	MARS	KETHU	7/1/1988	4/6/1988	
16	MARS	VENUS	4/6/1988	4/8/1989	
17	MARS	SUN	4/8/1989	10/12/1989	
18	MARS	MOON	10/12/1989	10/7/1990	
19	RAHU	RAHU	10/7/1990	22/3/1993	
20	RAHU	JUPITER	22/3/1993	16/8/1995	
21	RAHU	SATURN	16/8/1995	22/6/1998	
22	RAHU	MERCURY	22/6/1998	10/1/2001	
23	RAHU	KETHU	10/1/2001	28/1/2002	
24	RAHU	VENUS	28/1/2002	28/1/2005	
25	RAHU	SUN	28/1/2005	22/12/2005	
26	RAHU	MOON	22/12/2005	22/6/2007	
27	RAHU	MARS	22/6/2007	10/7/2008	

TWIN (KP) Y

PLACE OF BIRTH :- KOTTAYAM FEB 2, 1973

TIME OF BIRTH :- 16.10 PM DAY :- FRIDAY

CUSP POSITION

SL NO	CUSP	NIRAYANA DEG-MIN-SEC	RASI	STAR	SUB
1	<u></u>	80-27-5	MERCURY	JUPITER	JUPITER
2	H	107-10-36	MOON	MERCURY	MERCURY
3	111	136-28-56	SUN	VENUS	MOON
4	IV	168-32-21	MERCURY	MOON	MERCURY
5	v	200-58-46	VENUS	JUPITER	JUPITER
6	И	231-33-25	MARS	MERCURY	VENUS
7	MI	260-27-5	JUPITER	VENUS	JUPITER
8	VIII	287-10-36	SATURN	MOON	SATURN
9	IX	316-28-56	SATURN	RAHU	VENUS
10	x	348-32-21	JUPITER	MERCURY	MERCURY
11	×	20-58-46	MARS	VENUS	JUPITER
12	וג	51-33-25	VENUS	MOON	VENUS

PLANET POSITION

SL	PLANET	NIRAYANA	RASI	STAR	sua
ЮŃ		DEG-MIN-SEC	LORD	LORD	LORD
1	SUN	290-4-34	SATURN	MOON	KETHU
2	MOON	279-5-33	SATURN	SUN	VENUS
3	MARS	239-48-40	MARS	MERCURY	SATURN
4	MERCURY	293-24-44	SATURN	MARS	MARS
5	JUPITER	271-55-18	SATURN	SUN	JUPITER
6	VENUS	273-41-43	SATURN	SUN	SATURN
7	SATURN	50-30-22	VENUS	MOON	VENUS
8	RAHU	262-8-47	JUPITER	VENUS	SATURN
9	KETHU	82-8-47	MERCURY	JUPITER	SATURN
10	URANUS	179-35-28	MERCURY	MARS	SATURN
11	NEPTUNE	223-39-13	MARS	SATURN	RAHU
12	PLUTO	160-50-9	MERCURY	MOON	MOON

RASI CHART 60 X 18-32-21 XI 20-58-46 XII 21-33-25 1 20-27-5 SAT20-30-22R KET 22-8-47 FOR 9-28-4 330 90 IX 16-28-56 II 17-10-36 300 120 VIII 17-10-36 III 16-28-56 SUN 20-4-34 MER 23-24-44 VEN 3-41-43 JUP 1-55-18 MOO 9-5-33 270 150 VII 20-27-5 VI 21-33-25 V 20-58-46 IV 18-32-21 RAH 22-8-47 MAR 29-48-40 URA29-35-28 R NEP 13-39-13 PLU 10-50-9 R 240 210 180

TABLE OF SIGNIFICATOR

CUSP	PLANET IN THE	OCCUPANTS	PLANET IN THE	OWNER OF	
	STAR OF	OF CUSP	STAR OF	CUSP	
	OCCUPANTS-CUSP		OWNER OF		
			CUSP		
1		KETHU	MARS	MERCURY	
2			SUN SATURN	MOON	
			PLUTO		
3		PLUTO	VENUS JUPITER	SUN	
			MOON		
4		URANUS	MARS	MERCURY	
5		NEPTUNE	RAHU	VENUS	
6	MERCURY URANUS	MARS	MERCURY	MARS	
			URANUS		
7	SUN SATURN	VENUS	KETHU	JUPITER	
	RAHU KETHU	JUPITER			
	PLUTO	MOON RAHU			
8	MOON MARS	SUN	NEPTUNE	SATURN	
	JUPITER VENUS	MERCURY			
9			NEPTUNE	SATURN	
10			KETHU	JUPITER	
11	NEPTUNE	SATURN	MERCURY	MARS .	
			URANUS		
12			RAHU	VENUS	

NAKSHATRA: UTTARASHADHA VIMSOTTARI DASA BUKTHI

SLNO	DASA	BUKTHI	FROM	то	
	SUN DASA BALANCE :		2/2/1973	29/6/1973	
1	MOON	MOON	29/6/1973	29/4/1974	
2	MOON	MARS	29/4/1974	29/11/1974	
3	MOON	RAHU	29/11/1974	29/5/1976	
4	MOON	JUPITER	29/5/1976	29/9/1977	
5	MOON	SATURN	29/9/1977	29/4/1979	
6	MOON	MERCURY	29/4/1979	29/9/1980	
7	MOON	KETHU	29/9/1980	29/4/1981	
8	MOON	VENUS	29/4/1981	29/12/1982	
9	MOON	SUN	29/12/1982	29/6/1983	
10	MARS	MARS	29/6/1983	26/11/1983	
11	MARS	RAHU	26/11/1983	14/12/1984	
12	MARS	JUPITER	14/12/1984	20/11/1985	
13	MARS	SATURN	20/11/1985	29/12/1986	
14	MARS	MERCURY	29/12/1986	26/12/1987	
15	MARS	KETHU	26/12/1987	23/5/1988	
16	MARS	VENUS	23/5/1988	23/7/1989	
17	MARS	SUN	23/7/1989	29/11/1989	
18	MARS	MOON	29/11/1989	29/6/1990	
19	RAHU	RAHU	29/6/1990	11/3/1993	
20	RAHU	JUPITER	11/3/1993	5/8/1995	
21	RAHU	SATURN	5/8/1995	11/6/1998	
22	RAHU	MERCURY	11/6/1998	29/12/2000	
23	RAHU	KETHU	29/12/2000	17/1/2002	
24	RAHU	VENUS	17/1/2002	17/1/2005	
25	RAHU	SUN	17/1/2005	11/12/2005	
26	RAHU	MOON	11/12/2005	11/6/2007	
27	RAHU	MARS	11/6/2007	29/6/2008	